
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, December 16, 2025
7:30 p.m.

Catholic Education Centre
320 Bloomington Rd. West, Aurora, ON.  L4G 0M1

Watch the Regular Board Meeting STREAM event on our YCDSB TV Channel: http://bit.ly/YCDSB-TV

Pages

1. OPENING PRAYER Faith Ambassadors

2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Faith Ambassadors

3. ROLL CALL John De Faveri

4. APPROVAL OF NEW MATERIAL Maria Iafrate

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA Maria Iafrate

6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR
CURRENT MEETING

Maria Iafrate

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST FROM
PREVIOUS MEETING

Maria Iafrate

8. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Maria Iafrate

8.a Regular Board Meeting of November 25, 2025
9. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES OF PREVIOUS

MEETING
Maria Iafrate

9.a Follow-Up to Trustee McNicol's Comment re Cheque for
International Languages (Verbal)

John De Faveri

10. CHAIR’S REPORT / UPDATE / INSPIRATIONAL MESSAGES Maria Iafrate 3

11. OCSTA BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S UPDATE Jennifer Wigston 5

12. DIRECTOR’S REPORT / UPDATE John De Faveri 8

13. STUDENT TRUSTEES’ REPORT Sabine Cuesta, Abby
Shenouda

10

14. RECOGNITIONS / OUTSIDE PRESENTATIONS Maria Iafrate

15.  DELEGATIONS Maria Iafrate

16. JOURNEY TOWARDS OUR VISION – STAFF PRESENTATIONS
16.a 2024-2025 Director's Annual Report John De Faveri 12

16.b Multi-Year Strategic Plan Update - Report #1 Jennifer Sarna 18

17. ACTION ITEM(S) (including Committee Reports)
17.a TRUSTEE MOTION: Legal Costs Theresa McNicol 30

17.b Policy 106 Delegations to the Board and Procedures Jennifer Sarna 31

17.c Executive Committee - Terms of Reference Maria Iafrate 47

17.d Approval of Report No. 2026:01 Policy Review
Committee

Angela Saggese 48

http://bit.ly/YCDSB-TV


17.e Approval of Report  No. 2026:01 Corporate Services
Committee

Jennifer Wigston 94

17.f Receipt of Report No. 2026:02 Special Committee of
the Whole

Jennifer Wigston 97

17.g Receipt of Report No. 2026:02 Special Education
Advisory Committee

Angela Grella 98

17.h Approval of Report No. 2026:04 Committee of the
Whole

Jennifer Wigston

18. DISCUSSION ITEM(S)
18.a TRUSTEE MOTION: Legal Invoices Theresa McNicol 99

18.b TRUSTEE MOTION: Exploration of Mobile STREAM
Centres

Jennifer Wigston 100

18.c TRUSTEE MOTION: Obligations Relating to Public
Funds Spending or Obligation to Protect Public Funds

Maria Iafrate 101

18.d TRUSTEE MOTION: Audit of YCDSB Purchasing Credit
Cards (PCards)

Elizabeth Crowe,
Maria Iafrate

103

19. INFORMATION ITEM(S)
19.a Proposed By-Law Changes to Operational By-Law No.1 Maria Iafrate 104

19.b TRUSTEE MOTION: Support for the Holy Land
Children's Educational Endowment Fund

Maria Iafrate 106

19.c 2024-2025 E.Q.A.O. Results Anthony Arcadi 107

19.d YCDSB Charitable Foundation Update John De Faveri 121

19.e Canadian Cognitive Abilities Test (CCAT) Update Jennifer Powers 122

19.f MYFRP Update - Board December 16, 2025 124

19.g Yonge North Subway Extension Update Giovanna De
Girolamo

125

19.h Legal Opinion - Process and Expectations John De Faveri 134

19.i Trustees Meeting with Director or Senior Staff (Process) John De Faveri 135

19.j Cost Containment for Legal Processes John De Faveri 137

19.k Implementation of School Bus Cancellation Service
Areas

Giovanna De
Girolamo

138

19.l January 2026 Calendar 140

20. NOTICES OF MOTION
21. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) / REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
22. PRAYER TO ST. MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

St. Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our protection against the
wickedness and snares of the devil. May God rebuke him we humbly pray; and do
thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Hosts, by the power of God, cast into hell Satan and all
the evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. Amen.

23. ADJOURNMENT
 

Next Regular Board Meeting

Tuesday, January 27, 2026 at 7:30 pm

2



York Catholic District School Board 
Chair’s Report  

 

Memo To: Board of Trustees 
 
From: Maria Iafrate, Chair of the Board 
 
Date: December 16, 2025 
 
Re: Chair’s Report  

 
 
 
Merry Christmas 
 
Every time I walk into a school, I am amazed by all the work that has gone into celebrating Advent 
with our students. Besides the decorations and displays, it is obvious that our staff are sharing the 
real reason why Christmas is special: because it is when our Saviour was born. All of our schools 
are celebrating Masses to focus our minds on Jesus. Schools are also busy with charitable activities, 
which teach students the importance of using our bounty to help others. Finally, events like Christmas 
markets and concerts are incredible ways to bring our community together.  
 
Our staff, students and families bring Christ to so many people during the Christmas season and I 
want to thank them for everything they do.  
 
 
Thank You, Cardinal Leo and Our Lady Queen of the World CA 
 
I want to personally thank Frank Cardinal Leo, Archbishop of Toronto, and the Our Lady Queen of 
the World Catholic Academy (OLQW) staff for an extraordinary day on Monday, November 24, 2025, 
when His Eminence visited the Richmond Hill school. Cardinal Leo was so generous with his time, 
the students were fully engaged with him throughout his visit and the staff had clearly worked 
tirelessly to bring together such a well-organized morning.  
 
I want to especially thank Principal John Heinrich, Chaplains Ms. Gallo and Ms. Di Loreto, Choir 
Director Ms. Luongo and everyone at OLQW who made this day special. Also, I want to thank Fr. 
Jojo at Our Lady Queen of the World Parish, who was an indispensable partner in making this visit 
possible; we are lucky to have Fr. Jojo ministering to our students and staff.  
 
After such a special day, I hope Cardinal Leo will return to the YCDSB soon. He is always welcome. 
 
 
 
 
 

3



 

 
 
YCDSB Christmas Card 
 
Every year, the YCDSB’s grade 6, 7 and 8 students submit religiously inspired artwork in the hopes 
that it will be featured on the school board’s official Christmas Card. Our students are remarkably 
talented and each year it is incredibly difficult to select a winner. This year was no exception!  
 
I am happy to share that the artwork by Sophia M. from St. Anthony CES in Thornhill and Elizabeth 
I. from Our Lady of the Rosary CES in Concord will be featured on the YCDSB’s 2025 Christmas 
Card. These students created beautiful and meaningful representations of the true meaning of this 
season. We are very grateful to them both.  
 
To reduce costs while the YCDSB is undergoing its Multi-Year Financial Recovery Plan, we will send 
these cards electronically.  
 
 
 
Director’s Council Mass 
 
I also want to thank Director John De Faveri for inviting Trustees to the final Director’s Council before 
Christmas. We enjoyed the fellowship with the YCDSB’s principals and celebrating Mass with Bishop 
John Boissonneau, Auxiliary Bishop of the Northern Pastoral Region of the Archdiocese of Toronto. 
 
Bishop Boissonneau’s homilies are always insightful, but I think we especially enjoyed his praise 
after three YCDSB secondary schools received perfect ratings from an independent research 
organization.  
 
This Mass was another example of the care and respect that YCDSB staff put into living their faith, 
and I know that Trustees were happy to be part of it.  
 
 

4



 York Catholic District School Board  

 

Memo To:               Board of Trustees 
  
From:                      Jennifer Wigston, OCSTA Regional Director 
  
Date:                       December 16, 2025 
  
Re:                          OCSTA Report to Board 

 
 

Advocacy: FACE Lobby Day 
On November 25, OCSTA members joined representatives from OECTA and ACBO at Queen’s 
Park for FACE Lobby Day. Together, they met with MPPs, Cabinet Ministers, and Opposition Critics 
to share positive stories about publicly funded Catholic schools—both within local ridings and 
across the province. The unified approach of the three partners contributed to a highly successful 
Lobby Day, with all teams reporting positive and productive conversations. 
 
 
Advocacy: Finance Brief 
Each year, the Ontario Catholic School Trustees’ Association (OCSTA) prepares a Finance Brief 
for submission to the Ministry of Education. This document is shared with Catholic trustees, school 
boards, and is used throughout the year during meetings with MPPs and in other advocacy efforts. 
 
For the 2025–2026 Finance Brief, OCSTA invited member boards to provide input. The resulting 
commentary and recommendations reflect long-standing financial challenges, priorities identified 
through the consultation process, and direction arising from resolutions approved at the 2025 
Annual General Meeting. The brief was further informed by discussions at the Fall Regional 
Meetings and feedback received from Catholic school boards over the past year. This input has 
been invaluable in shaping recommendations that address shared financial priorities as well as 
challenges unique to individual Catholic school boards. 
 
The Finance Brief has now been finalized, published, and distributed to all trustees across the 
province. It was sent via email on December 11 by Lorena Madalena at OCSTA. A copy has also 
been sent to the Minister of Education, Paul Calandra. The recommendations contained in the 
document will help guide and strengthen OCSTA’s education funding advocacy strategy. We 
encourage Catholic school trustees and senior board officials to review the brief carefully and refer 
to it during meetings with MPPs and Ministry of Education staff. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the 2025–2026 Finance Brief, please contact us at 
mbellmore@ocsta.on.ca or pdaly@ocsta.on.ca.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5

mailto:mbellmore@ocsta.on.ca
mailto:pdaly@ocsta.on.ca


OCSTA Short Video Contest – Online Voting 
We would like to thank all Catholic school students and staff who have participated in creating 
videos about this year’s Catholic Education Week theme – Pilgrims of Hope: On the Path to 
Holiness.  
 
We are pleased to inform you of the news that 57 submissions were received and reviewed. While 
extremely difficult to eliminate any, a short-list of 12 qualifying videos have been posted online (6 
elementary school video submissions and 6 secondary school video submissions). 
I strongly encourage you to go online and vote for our very own Father Michael McGivney’s video:  
 
TITLE: Hope Not Magic  
SCHOOL: Fr. Michael McGivney C.A.  
CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD: York 
 
We encourage all Trustees, students, staff and families to vote for their favourite Catholic 
elementary and secondary school videos during the voting period which is now open and closes on 
Monday, December 29th at midnight. 
 
We hope viewing these engaging and faith-filled videos prepared by students in our Catholic 
schools about acts of kindness, Christian service and the call to be “Pilgrims of Hope” will bring 
much joy during this blessed season of Advent. 
 
To vote, please follow the link below: 
 https://www.togetherinfaith.ca/video-contest-voting 
 
Your support of this initiative is very much appreciated. 
 
 
OCSTA Awards: Nomination Deadline – January 9 
OCSTA invites boards each year to nominate candidates for three awards: 

• Student Trustee Alumni Award 
• Trustee Award of Merit 
• Special Award 

Criteria, guidelines, and nomination packages were distributed on November 12. Please review the 
email from Paulina Daniel and submit nominations by noon on Friday, January 9. 
 
CCSTA Award: Nomination Deadline – January 16 
Nominations are now open for the 2026 Justice James Higgins Award, presented annually for 
outstanding leadership in Catholic education in Canada. 
Details about the award criteria and procedures are available on the CCSTA website. 
https://ccsta.ca/staging2025/wp-content/uploads/2025/10/The-Justice-James-Higgins-Award-
Criteria-and-Procedures-2025.pdf 
 
OCSTA Resolutions 
The development and processing of resolutions is a core responsibility of OCSTA. Through the 
resolution process, Catholic trustees and member boards can raise issues of provincial significance 
and help shape the Association’s priorities. All resolutions submitted by members will be presented 
for consideration and voting by delegates.  Boards may submit resolutions at any time before the 
deadline of 12:00 p.m. EST on February 6, 2026. 
  

6

https://www.togetherinfaith.ca/video-contest-voting
https://ccsta.ca/staging2025/wp-content/uploads/2025/10/The-Justice-James-Higgins-Award-Criteria-and-Procedures-2025.pdf
https://ccsta.ca/staging2025/wp-content/uploads/2025/10/The-Justice-James-Higgins-Award-Criteria-and-Procedures-2025.pdf


 
 
 
 
Following discussions at the 2025 OCSTA Regional Meetings, a presentation will be offered at the 
2026 Catholic Trustees Seminar to explain the updated process for handling and voting on 
resolutions. This session will feature Data on the Spot (DOTS), the company providing OCSTA’s 
digital voting platform. Attendees will be guided through how to access and use the application to 
support a smooth and transparent voting experience. 
 
For any questions, please contact Pat Daly at pdaly@ocsta.on.ca 

 
Please also refer to the email sent to all trustees on October 29, which includes: 

• Guidelines 
• Sample Resolution 
• Explanation of Committee Recommendations & Resolution Procedures 
• OCSTA Mission, Vision, Strategic Priorities 
• Chart of 2025 Resolutions with AGM Decisions 
• Related By-Law Section 5.9 (Resolutions) 

 

 

A gentle reminder about the January Trustee Seminar 

 

Dates: Friday, January 16 to Saturday, January 17 

Location: Delta Hotels by Marriott Toronto Airport 

 

 

 

Finally, on behalf of OCSTA, I bring prayers for a peaceful advent and a most blessed Christmas 
to all of the students, staff and families at the York Catholic District School Board. And best wishes 
for a Happy New Year! 

 
 

 

7

mailto:pdaly@ocsta.on.ca


York Catholic District School Board 
Director’s Report  

 

 
Memo To: Board of Trustees 
 
From: John De Faveri, Director of Education 
 
Date: December 16, 2025 
 
Re: Director’s Report  

 
 
The Most Wonderful Time of the Year 
I know that children, through their wonder and joy, help adults feel the miracle of Christmas more 
closely. And as a father, grandfather and former teacher, I also know that adults work hard to keep the 
spirit of Christmas alive for children. The way that many generations come together to make Advent 
and Christmas special for each other is a beautiful reminder of Christ’s call for us to live with one 
another in community. On Jesus’ birthday – and on every other day of the year – it is better to be 
together.   Thank you to everyone in the York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) who is making 
this Advent season special through school Masses, concerts, fundraising campaigns, Christmas 
markets and whatever else brings us closer to God and to each other.  
 
 
Christmas Break 
I am always happy that our students and staff can enjoy a break over Christmas and New Year’s. The 
school year is demanding and it is important to take some time with family, friends and to be immersed 
in one’s faith.   The last day of school is Friday, December 19, 2025, and the first day back to school 
is Monday, January 5, 2026. I hope everyone gets a chance to recharge over the break! 
 
 
Advent Prayer Services 
A long-standing Catholic Education Centre (CEC) tradition is the prayer services that happen every 
Monday morning during Advent in the building’s atrium. Staff gather together for prayer and song on 
the three floors of the CEC that open onto the atrium. The Religious Education team do an excellent 
job every week spreading the joy of Advent among our staff. It is the perfect way to start the week. 
Our final prayer service of this Advent season will happen on Monday, December 15. In January, the 
weekly prayer service will return to the chapel on Friday mornings.  
 
 
“Paying it Forward” to the Rose of Sharon 
The YCDSB appreciates that, over the years, Costco has generously supported our students in need 
of school supplies. When Costco unexpectedly donated a gift card to the YCDSB just before 
Christmas, I thought we should pay that kindness forward by giving the card to the Rose of Sharon 
Services for Young Mothers.  The Rose of Sharon makes a tremendous impact in York Region and is 
an educational partner of the YCDSB. They ensure that young mothers receive the support they need 
to care for their babies and, with the assistance of a YCDSB educator, help these mothers complete 
their high school education. The YCDSB is always happy to help the Rose of Sharon, and we thank 
Costco for its ongoing support.  
 

8



 

Father Henri Nouwen CES on CP24 
It was exciting for our community to see representatives from Father Henri Nouwen CES in Richmond 
Hill on the morning broadcast of CP24 discussing their contribution to the CP24 CHUM Christmas 
Wish toy drive. As Principal Dario De Angelis said on TV, this fundraiser “represents the character of 
this school. It represents the values that we try to show every day. … It’s great to see the kids coming 
through the doors, bringing their gifts, knowing it is going to make somebody else happy. It’s worth it 
all.” 
 
 
CEC Charity Bake Sale 
On Wednesday, December 3, 2025, the Catholic Education Centre (CEC) staff supported local 
charities in a fun way that was a great team-building exercise. Staff provided homemade baked goods, 
which were then sold after our final Director’s Council of the year. The bake sale raised $3,000, which 
was donated to Inn from the Cold and Belinda’s Place, both in Newmarket. I know both organizations 
are grateful that we are supporting those in our community.  
 
 
EQAO Results 
Once again, the YCDSB is a leader in Ontario in EQAO scores. As was shared with our community, 
the YCDSB exceeded provincial averages in all EQAO testing areas. I was particularly pleased to see 
that the YCDSB’s averages improved year-over-year in most areas of testing.   
 
Minister of Education Paul Calandra and the media have been discussing how Catholic school boards 
outperform their public board peers in EQAO testing. For me, the success of Catholic boards is rooted 
in our care for our students’ whole person, the Gospel values we instill in them and the community 
involvement we encourage.   Thank you to our students, staff and families for these excellent results.  
 
 
Leadership Links Conference 
The York Secondary Catholic Presidents’ Council (YSCPC) and YCDSB staff worked together to offer 
an excellent day for elementary school students at the Leadership Links conference on Monday, 
December 8. Roughly 100 grade 7 and 8 students spent the day at the CEC developing their 
leadership skills, building confidence and learning that their leadership can start today. Events such 
as these have significant benefits in our schools, as they equip students with the tools they need to 
make positive contributions to their community.   
 
 
St. Maximilian Kolbe CHS Student Represents Canada 
Congratulations to Anthony Lee, a grade 10 High Performer Athlete (HPA) program student from St. 
Maximilian Kolbe CHS in Aurora, for winning a bronze medal while representing Canada in the 
International Ju-Jitsu Federation Worlds. It is incredible to see YCDSB students competing on the 
global stage.  
 
Any student who competes at the highest levels of their sport should consider joining the HPA program, 
which will give them the flexibility they need to excel athletically while also completing their classwork, 
just as Anthony did.  
 

9



 
Regular Board Meeting 
 
Information Report 

Student Trustees Update  

December 16th, 2025 

 
Alignment to Strategic Plan 
 
This report is linked to the strategic priorities: 
Catholic Faith: Nurture faith formation and relationships with Christ.  
Equity and Inclusion: Build and sustain an equitable, inclusive and accessible learning and 
working environment. 
Student Achievement: Enrich and improve student learning so that excellence in achievement 
and engagement is possible for all.  
Well-Being: Promote and nurture the social-emotional, spiritual and physical well-being of all 
members of the YCDSB. 
 
YSCPC Leadership Links Conference - “Words Matter” 
This past month, YSCPC hosted our yearly elementary school conference, Leadership 
Links, under the theme of “Words Matter.” Students spent the full day at the CEC, being 
enriched in development rotations and games that promote kindness and the diversity 
that we have in Christ at the YCDSB. They were able to hear from guest speaker Jeff A.D. 
Martin, as well as Cardinal Carter students, and even earned some take-home prizes. 
We are eager to continue our connection with all students in our board, both 
elementary and secondary alike. 
 
YSCPC Christmas Event 
Keeping with annual tradition, the YSCPC held a Christmas gathering at the CEC in an 
afternoon of festivities and giving back to the community. Attendees contributed and 
gift-wrapped donations for Rose of Sharon, which supports young mothers and their 
families. Students also participated in networking and writing Christmas wishes for 
seniors in long-term care homes. 
 

 
10



 
Christmas Concerts  
Elementary and secondary schools across the board have been demonstrating their 
Christmas spirit through music and performance, inviting the broader community to 
share in the joy of the season. Thanks to the dedicated staff, hardworking students, and 
supportive parents who make all of this possible! 
 
Christmas Break 
YCDSB will be on Christmas break from December 19th to January 4th. After an 
incredible start to the school year, we wish all students, teachers, and faculty members 
a restful and joyful holiday season! 
 
 

 
11



2024-25 Director’s Annual Report

Presented by John De Faveri
Director of Education, Foundation Chair and

Secretary of the Board

12



• Helping our neighbours in need. 
• The “Blessed and Beloved” curriculum 

was implemented in every grade 1 
classroom.

• New “Catholic Virtues” posters.

Living Our Faith

13



• EQAO results continue to exceed 
provincial averages.

• Every elementary school visited a 
STREAM Centre.

• International Language Extended Day 
program announcement.

Student Achievement

14



• Released our first Employee Equity Audit.
• Hosted our first International Day for the 

Eradication of Poverty fundraiser.
• Expanded the Frost and Fire Games.

Equity and Inclusion

15



• Mental Health Ambassadors in every 
school.

• Launched the Employee Wellness 
Newsletter.

• Shared mental health tools with students.

Well-Being

16



Thank You

17



2025-2026 MYSP Reporting Template YEAR THREE  

Report #1 - December 16, 2025 
 

OUR MISSION 

With Jesus Christ as our model, we provide all students with a Catholic education rooted in equity, well-being and 
learning. 

OUR VISION 

A recognized leader in Catholic education committed to inclusion, excellence and innovation that develops socially 
responsible global citizens. 

OUR VALUES 

Catholicity 
Equity, Diversity and Inclusion 

Excellence 
Fiscal Responsibility 

Integrity 
Respect 

 
Overall Performance Summary: Status of Goals 

Reporting 
Period 

Action Required Monitor On Target Overall Trend 

 
Current 

 
0/20 

 
14/20 

 
6/20 

 

 
Monitor 

          

18



Catholic Faith - Strategic Commitment #1 
Nurture faith formation and relationships with Christ. 
 
Strategic Goals 
Goal 1.1 Foster a culture that respects and honours the human dignity of all persons that is inspired by our 

relationship with Christ. 

Goal 1.2 Embed and prioritize the Ontario Catholic School Graduate expectations into all curriculum areas. 

Goal 1.3 Cultivate school environments focused on spiritual growth to support Catholic faith formation and deeper 
faith knowledge. 

 
 
 
 
Performance Summary: Status of Goals 

Reporting Period Action 
Required 

Monitor On Target Overall Trend 

 
Current 

 
0/3 

 
2/3 

 
1/3 

 

 
Monitor 

               

 
 
 
 
 
 

19

https://iceont.ca/resources/ocsge/


 
 
 
SMART Goal Status 

SMART Goal Current 
Status 

Trend Comment 

1. By June 2026, at least 90% of elementary 
NTIP teachers who attend the mandatory 
Religion and Family Life sessions will report 
a positive and significant impact (“Agree” or 
“Strongly Agree”) on their familiarity with and 
ability to implement the Religious Education 
and Family Life Education Programs at 
YCDSB 

Monitoring 

     

While the mandatory Religion and Family Life NTIP 
sessions have not yet been offered, they are 
scheduled for mid-year. Feedback from participating 
NTIP teachers will be collected and analyzed at that 
time to determine progress toward this SMART goal. 

2. The Blessed and Beloved Family Life 
Education Program will be implemented in 
100% of Grades 2 and 3 classrooms by 
June 2026.  

On Target 

     

This SMART goal has been achieved, as the Blessed 
and Beloved Family Life Education Program is being 
implemented in 100% of Grades 2 and 3 classrooms. 
All required resources have been distributed to 
schools, and in-servicing has been provided to 
support effective implementation. 

3. Before the end of June 2026, the total 
number of attendees at Faith Ambassador 
events (where staff gather in fellowship and 
celebrate our Catholic identity) for the year 
will have increased by 25% 

Monitoring 

     

While the series of Faith Ambassador events has not 
yet begun, sessions are scheduled to take place 
during Advent, Lent, Easter, and year-end. Final 
confirmation of this SMART goal will be provided once 
all four gatherings have taken place. 

20



 

Equity and Inclusion - Strategic Commitment #2 
Build and sustain an equitable, inclusive and accessible learning and working environment. 
 
Strategic Goals 
Goal 2.1 Recognize, value, integrate and celebrate the dignity and diversity of all students, staff, and Catholic school 

communities. 

Goal 2.2 Identify and eliminate barriers to equity of access, opportunity and outcomes for all, as we acknowledge that we 
are all created in the image of God. 

Goal 2.3 Actively promote, support and expect excellence for all students to achieve their God-given potential. 
 
 
 
Performance Summary: Status of Goals 

Reporting 
Period 

Action Required Monitor On Target Overall Trend 

 
Current 

 
0/4 

 

 
3/4 

 
1/4 

 

 
Monitor 

            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



SMART Goal Status 
SMART Goal Current 

Status 
Trend Comment 

4. By June 2026, YCDSB will develop 
and deliver three equity and 
accessibility training sessions for staff 
grounded in Catholic Social Teaching 
designed to foster a welcoming, 
inclusive, and accessible school 
environment for all students, staff, 
and families. 

On Target 

  

Training sessions have already taken place, with more to 
come, including: 

●​ HREAL Leads w/ Shakil (Unconscious Bias/Patterns 
x2) 

●​ Managers/Supervisors w/ Shakil (Unconscious 
Bias/Patterns) 

●​ Senior Team  w/ Shakil (Unconscious Bias/Patterns) 
●​ YCDSB Board-wide CUPE, OECTA,   w/ Shakil 

(Unconscious Bias/Patterns) 
●​ Principals and Senior Team Hate/Bias Motivated 

Incidents and Crime w/ YRP   
●​ YCDSB Board-wide Hate/Bias Motivated Incidents and 

Crime w/ YRP 
●​ Innovation Project - Year 3 Equity and Accessibility 

Training for 17 Principals and staff 
 

5. By June 2026, YCDSB will use 
audit data to create seven equity 
portraits to support schools in 
identifying and addressing systemic 
barriers and closing equity gaps. 

Monitoring 

  

Turner Consulting currently conducting Education Audit. 
Portraits are in draft form as of Nov 2025. 

6. By June 2026, two system-level 
strategies will be developed to 
promote greater inclusion and 
engagement of students, staff, and 
families. (i.e. Dismantling Anti-Black 
Racism Strategy) 
 
 
 

Monitoring 

  

Strategies are in development: 
●​ Phase Two of the YCDSB Classroom Technology 

Initiative  
●​ Turner Consulting in the process of Consultations with 

communities to develop the YCDSB Equity Plan and 
Dismantling ABR Strategy 

22



7. By the end of June 2026, at least 
two new system-level initiatives will 
have been developed and 
implemented that address barriers to 
equity of access, opportunity and 
outcomes for those who are 
traditionally underrepresented. (i.e. 
Student Leadership Symposiums) 

Monitoring 

  

Planning for the following is underway: 
●​ Implementation of YCDSB Education Equity Advisory 

Committees and Community Consultations 
●​ YCDSB East Asian Student Symposium (May 2026) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

23



Student Achievement - Strategic Commitment  #3 
Enrich and improve student learning so that excellence in achievement and engagement is possible for 
all. 
 
Strategic Goals 
Goal 
3.1 

Embed culturally responsive and relevant pedagogy (CRRP) for the improvement of literacy and numeracy skills 
and to promote evidence-based instructional practices. 

Goal 
3.2 

Align program initiatives with the global competencies and future trends in education and the workforce. 

Goal 
3.3 

Offer inclusive and specialized programs that address and engage all student learner profiles. 

 
 
 
 
Performance Summary: Status of Goals 

Reporting Period Action 
Required 

Monitor On Target Overall Trend 

 
Current 

 
0/8 

 
6/8 

 
2/8 

 
Monitor 

         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pkOM-aiPq0HpKcFxDT-WELcp6zfTas-T/view


 
SMART Goal Status 

SMART Goal Current 
Status 

Trend Comment 

8. The percentage of grade 3 students 
at or above the provincial standard 
(levels 3 and 4) in the EQAO 
assessment for writing will improve from 
73% to 75%. 

Monitoring 

   

72% of students at or above provincial standard in 
Grade 3 writing, well above the provincial average of 
65%, and demonstrating continued success in this area 
with stable performance. EQAO results are released 
annually, so the same data is referenced for the duration of 
the school year. 

9. The percentage of secondary 
students successfully completing the 
Ontario Secondary School Literacy Test 
(OSSLT) will improve from 89% to 90%. 

On Track 

   

90% of students successfully completed OSSLT, and 
above the provincial average of 85%. EQAO results are 
released annually, so the same data is referenced for the 
duration of the school year.  

10. The percentage of grade 6 students 
at or above the provincial standard 
(levels 3 and 4) in the EQAO 
assessment for math will improve from 
60% to 62%. 

Monitoring 

   

60% of students at or above provincial standard in 
Grade 6 math, well above the provincial average of 
51%, and reflecting stable performance. EQAO results 
are released annually, so the same data is referenced for the 
duration of the school year. 

11. The percentage of grade 3 students 
at or above the provincial standard 
(levels 3 and 4) in the EQAO 
assessment for math will improve from 
69% to 70%. 

Monitoring 

   

69% of students at or above provincial standard in 
Grade 3 math, above the provincial average of 64%, 
and reflecting stable performance. EQAO results are 
released annually, so the same data is referenced for the 
duration of the school year 

12. The percentage of grade 9 students 
at or above the provincial standard 
(levels 3 and 4) in the EQAO 
assessment for math will improve from 
70% to 72%. 

On Track 

   

73% of students at or above provincial standard in 
Grade 9 math, well above the provincial average of 
54%. EQAO results are released annually, so the same data 
is referenced for the duration of the school year.  
 

25



13. The percentage of elementary 
schools visiting and engaging in 
learning at the STREAM Centres of 
Excellence will be maintained at 100%  

Monitoring 

    

While the school year is still in progress, current 
scheduling indicates that we are on pace to maintain 
100% elementary school participation in the STREAM 
Centres of Excellence. Final confirmation of this target 
will be provided closer to the end of the school year. 
 
 
 

14. Continue to maintain high levels of 
completion rates (over 90%) in all areas 
of Experiential Learning (i.e., 
Cooperative Education, Dual Credit 
Programs, Ontario Youth 
Apprenticeship Program, Schools 
Within a College, and Specialist High 
Skills Major). 

Monitoring 

    

Students continue to make progress in achieving 
these goals, additional data will be needed in order to 
assess at the next interval. 

15. Student Services will define and 
document key equity indicators specific 
to their department (eg. OT/PT, Speech 
and Language, Psychology, etc) by the 
end of June 2026 as the first phase in 
developing an equitable service delivery 
model. 
 

 Monitoring 

   

Student Services is currently gathering comprehensive 
data. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



Well-Being - Strategic Commitment #4 
Promote and nurture the social-emotional, spiritual, and physical well-being of all members of the 
YCDSB. 
 
Strategic Goals 
Goal 4.1 Provide equitable access to evidence-based culturally-responsive services and resources for all. 

Goal 4.2 Support ongoing individualized accommodations that support staff to perceive that their working conditions 
and environments are healthy, safe and inclusive.  

Goal 4.3 Foster a culture of ongoing professional development to increase mental health literacy and enhance staff 
efficacy to improve employee engagement and support student well-being 

 
Performance Summary: Status of Goals 

Reporting 
Period 

Action Required Monitor On Target Overall Trend 

 
Current 

 
0/5 

 

 
3/5 

 
2/5 

 
Monitor 

           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

27



SMART Goal Status  
SMART Goal Current Status Trend Comment 

16. 100% of schools will have a 
mental health and wellbeing goal on 
their SAP that reflects their school 
climate data. 
 

Monitoring 

        

Data from each school’s Student Action Plan (SAP) 
continues to be reviewed.  

17. At 100% of our elementary 
schools, one of their SAP goals will 
be related to Active School Travel 
as supported by the Active School 
Travel Lead. 

On Track 

        

Data from each school’s Student Action Plan (SAP) 
continues to be reviewed. 

18. Throughout the 2025–2026 
school year, the Attendance Task 
Force, in collaboration with 
Employee Wellness and the 
Communications Department, will 
implement a system-wide strategy 
to continue to  reduce employee 
absenteeism.  

On Track 

        

This goal is on track as indicated by: 
●​ Communications and Wellness partnership 

providing regular wellness emails and 
programming resources. 

●​ Increased utilization of wellness resources 
●​ Absenteeism levels decreased, year-to-date 

19. 100% of guidance counselors 
and chaplains will be ASIST trained 
by June 2026. 

Monitoring 
 

       

Training sessions have been offered and most have 
been trained but not yet 100%. 
 
 

20. The capacity of the senior 
academic team in supporting 
student mental health will be 
developed using the Leading 
Mentally Healthy Schools resource 
from School Mental Health Ontario. 

 
Monitoring 

       

The first training session has been completed with 
the second session scheduled for January. 

28



 
Year Two (2024-2025) Unreported Goals 
Data available AFTER June Report to Board 

SMART Goal Current Status Trend Comment 

18. By the end of June 2025, the 
percentage of grade 3 and 6 students 
identified as having special education 
needs at or above the provincial 
standard (levels 3 and 4) in the EQAO 
assessment for reading and writing will 
increase by 3% 

    Monitoring 

        

Data analysis of reading and writing (two different 
areas) and grades 3 and 6 (two different divisions) 
proved challenging and not statistically relevant.   

19. By the end of June 2025, the 
percentage of grade 3 and 6  students 
identified as having special education 
needs at or above the provincial 
standard (levels 3 and 4) in the EQAO 
assessment for mathematics will 
increase by 3% 

    Monitoring 

        

Data analysis of reading and writing (two different 
areas) and grades 3 and 6 (two different divisions) 
proved challenging and not statistically relevant.  

33. By June 2025, through workshops, 
peer led mental health initiatives, 
curriculum and social media, 67% of 
students in grades 6, 9 and 10 will be 
aware of and know how to access 
mental health supports and services. 

    On Target 

        

Data from EQAO surveys revealed that all three 
grades (6, 9 and 10) indicated at least a 67 % 
awareness of how to access mental health supports. 

 

29



York Catholic District School Board 
Catholic Education Centre, 320 Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario L4G 0M1 

Tel: 905-713-1211, 416-221-5051, 1-800-363-2711, Voice Mail Box: 17123 
Fax: 905-713-1272 ● www.ycdsb.ca 

Theresa McNicol, Trustee – East Gwillimbury/Georgina/Newmarket 
theresa.mcnicol@ycdsb.ca • Cell: 289-383-7656 

September 30, 2025 
 
 

LEGAL COSTS 
 

 
Whereas the Board needs to be transparent with the costs regarding: 

- Gillian Tuck, Bruce Best, Jennifer MacKenzie, McCarthy Tretrault, 
Michael Maynard the Integrity Commissioner, BLG, the Judicial 
Review, 

covering all legal fees with one grand total; 
 

Whereas the Catholic ratepayers of York Region are demanding this information. 
 
 

 
LET IT BE RESOLVED: 
 
THAT the YCDSB release the total cost spent on all these investigations to be 
accountable to the Catholic ratepayers. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Theresa McNicol 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Reference No. 2025:12:0930:TM 

 
 

30



1 

 

 

YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

 

POLICY TITLE: DELEGATIONS TO THE BOARD 

1. PURPOSE 

The Board recognizes that all stakeholders members of the York Catholic District School Board 
(YCDSB) community have a voice in the decision-making process of the Board and need to have 
their concerns heard. This policy is intended to provide the guidelines under which the above 
may occur. This policy is consistent with all applicable legislation, including the Education Act, 
the Ontario Human Rights Code, the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of 
Privacy Act (MIFIPPA), and the Occupational Health and Safety Act (OHSA). 

 
2. OBJECTIVE 

The York Catholic District School Board values the input of the members of the community 
where they have a particular concern or interest. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that 
delegations to the Board enable members of the YCDSB community to provide input on items 
that may appear on Board Agendas and fall within the governance role of the Board of Trustees. 

 
3. PARAMETERS 

In the interest of engaging our communities, the Board is committed to providing members of 
the YCDSB community stakeholders with opportunities to provide input and/or feedback that 
supports or informs Board decision-making through delegations received at Regular, In Camera, 
Special Meetings of the Board or Committee Meetings. All delegations may be made in person 
or virtually. 

 
3.1 Every effort will be made by the York Catholic District School Board to post meeting 

agendas on the YCDSB website three (3) business days prior to the Board meeting. An 
individual or group wishing to make a delegation to the Board regarding an item that 
appears on the agenda must ensure that the completed Admin. 29(a) form and all written 
(verbatim speech) and electronic materials/presentations are received by the Senior 
Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee Services by email no later than 
noon on the last business day 6:00 p.m. on the Sunday  

3.2 before the Board meeting. Form Admin.29(a) is located in YCDSB Procedure 106 
Delegations to the Board. 
3.2.1 If a delegate submits a request on a topic that is not on the agenda, the 

delegate’s request may be referred to a future Committee/Special/Regular 
Board meeting. 

BOARD POLICY 
Policy Section 
Governance 

Policy Number 
106 

Former Policy # 
803 

Page 
1 of 4 

Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 
May 1969 May, 1988, June 22nd, 1999 

January 2003, March 25, 2008 
February 25, 2014, November 29, 2016 

January 31, 2017, June 15, 2021 
March 29, 2022, March 6, 2024, 

March 25, 2025 
 

31



2 

 

 

3.2.2 After 6:00 p.m. on the Sunday prior to the Board meeting, the Senior 
Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee Services shall email 
all delegation requests received by the deadline to the Board of Trustees 
and Senior Administration for review and input. 

 
3.3 Upon receipt of a public request to make a delegation in accordance with 3.1, the Chair 

of the Board and the Director of Education, with input from the Board of Trustees and 
Senior Administration, will: 

i. Review the request and determine whether the delegation will be heard. 
(Presentations contrary to directives by the Ministry of Education, Ministry of 
Labour, Ministry of Health and our local and provincial Health Units will not be 
heard). 

ii. Determine if an approved delegation request will be heard before the whole Board, 
in a private (In Camera) session of the Board, referred to a Committee of the 
Board, or referred to the Director of Education to determine appropriate action(s). 

iii. Approve up to five (5) delegations for any Board meeting with priority given to 
requests related to an item on the agenda. Priority will be granted to delegation 
submissions based on their timestamp, giving precedence to those received 
earliest. 

iv. Determine whether to refer a request for a delegation to a future meeting. 
v. Provide members of the Board with a copy of the delegate(s) written (verbatim 

speech) and electronic materials/presentations, prior to the meeting. 
 

3.4 A delegation may be made on a topic only once to the Board or a Committee of the 
Board within a 12-month period, unless the subject matter of the delegation has 
changed substantially since the prior delegation was made. 

 
3.5 If the number of delegation requests is numerous and cannot be accommodated and/or 

the subject matter of the delegation request has already been heard at a previous 
meeting, then the Chair of the Board and the Director of Education, with input from the 
Board of Trustees and Senior Administration, will: 

i. Review all requests and give priority to those received first while also ensuring that 
all viewpoints are presented to the Board in a balanced manner. 

ii. Determine whether or not the subject matter and viewpoint(s) of the delegation has 
already been heard and that no new content is being provided to the Board, and or 
a Committee of the Board. 

iii. Prioritize delegations addressing matters coming to the Board/Committee for action 
and refer other delegations to a future agenda especially if the matter is not on the 
agenda and has not been previously heard by the Board/Committee. 

iv. Discuss all requests and if it is determined that the subject matter and viewpoint 
have already been heard and/or there were too many delegations on a topic and/or 
the delegation was not referred to a future meeting, then the delegations that were 
not chosen to make a verbal presentation will be notified that copies of their written 
submission will be made available in the meeting room and recognized by the Chair 
and will be included in the meeting minutes as an Appendix. 

 
3.6 The local Trustee(s) will be notified if a delegate registers to make a delegation on a 

subject matter that is specific to their Trustee area. 
 

3.7 Delegates shall be notified by email of their approved delegation 24 hours prior to the 
start of the Board or Committee meeting. 

 
3.8 Where the matter brought before the Board or Committee requires a decision, the Board 

will conduct debate as necessary and notify the official spokesperson through written 
32



3 

 

 

communication of the decision, or of the date of the meeting at which a decision is to be 
made. 

 
3.9 A delegation request related to the development of a proposed policy or the revision of 

an existing policy must also complete and submit Appendix 4 (Rationale for the 
Development, Review or Revision of a Policy) of Policy 101 Meta Policy: Policy 
Management and Governance along with Form Admin. 29(a) to the Senior Coordinator 
to the Director of Education and Trustee Services as outlined in parameter 3.1. Forms 
are located in YCDSB Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board. 

 
3.10 A delegation request related to a specific Pupil Accommodation Review shall only be 

received by the Board of Trustees at a Special Meeting of the Board in accordance with 
Board Policy 713 Pupil Accommodation Review of Schools and the procedures that are 
an addendum to this policy. 

 
3.11 All delegates wishing to present at the York Catholic District School Board must be a 

parent/guardian of a student enrolled in a YCDSB school and/or a resident of York 
Region. 

 
3.12 Up to two (2) individuals may serve as a spokesperson for any delegation and no other 

person shall address the Board except by request of a Trustee and permission of the 
Chair. 

 
3.13 All delegates must consent to being live-streamed during the meeting. 

 
3.14 No one may display signs or placards, banners, flags, defamatory clothing, engage in 

applause, or debate those who are making delegations or engage in other conversations 
or other behaviours that may disrupt the meeting. 

 
3.15 Violations of Policy and Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board will not be tolerated 

and may result in a person being directed to leave, restricting/prohibiting attendance at 
future meetings and/or all YCDSB properties, or being subject to criminal charges 
depending on the nature of the conduct. 

 
4. RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 Board of Trustees 
4.1.1 To listen attentively and consider the concerns, opinions, and perspectives of 

community members regarding Board/Committee agenda items. 
4.1.2 To ensure a respectful and collaborative environment where diverse voices 

are valued in the decision-making process. 
4.1.3 To refrain from engaging in debate with delegates, recognizing their role is to 

absorb and consider insights presented. 

4.2 Director of Education 
4.2.1 To oversee compliance with the Delegations to the Board policy. 

 
4.3 Administrator to the Director and Trustee Services 

4.3.1 To manage requests for public or written delegations, to present a petition, 
give input related to an item on the agenda or a pupil accommodation review 
to the Board. 

 
4.4 Delegates 

4.4.1 To present concerns in a positive and constructive manner. 

33



4 

 

 

4.4.2 To maintain a level of decorum which will allow meetings to proceed 
effectively. 

4.4.3 To refrain from the use of abusive or derogatory language. 
4.4.4 To refrain from making negative or derogatory personal references. 
4.4.5 To refrain from asking questions or engaging in cross-debate with other 

delegates, staff, or Trustees of the Board. 
 
5. DEFINITIONS 

5.1 Delegation 
A formal presentation or written submission made to the whole Board at a Committee/ 
Special/Regular Board Meeting or in a private session of the Board relating to a specific 
issue or matter as outlined in Section 3: Parameters of this policy. 

 
5.2 Petition 

A formal request presented to an Official of the Board pertaining to a defined issue and/or 
concern. Such requests will be presented in the form of a document containing original 
written or electronic signatures, valid email addresses which may only be associated with 
one signatory, resident addresses, telephone numbers and postal codes. Incomplete 
petitions shall not be accepted and will not be presented. 

 
6. CROSS REFERENCES 

 
Legislation 
Education Act 
Human Rights Code 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
Occupational Health and Safety Act 

YCDSB Policies & Procedures 
YCDSB Policy 101 Meta Policy: Policy Management and Governance 
YCDSB Policy 713 Pupil Accommodation Review 
YCDSB Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board 

 
 
 
 

Approval by Board  March 25, 2025  
Date 

Effective Date  March 26, 2025  
Date 

Revision Dates  March 25, 2025  
Date 

Review Date  March 2029  
Date 

34

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90o01


 

 
 
 
 
 

 
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Effective: XX 

 35



 

 
1.​ PUBLIC DELEGATIONS 

 
1.1​Following approval to hear the delegation, before the full Board or a Committee of the 

Board, the five (5) delegates selected shall be notified by email and shall be apprised of 
the expectations for the delegation. 

 
1.2​Delegates must stay within the allotted five (5) minute time limit. Their delegation will be cut 

off once the time limit is reached, whether they are present in the boardroom or online. No 
exceptions will be granted. 
 

1.3​ The Chair of the Board/Committee meeting will introduce the Delegate(s) by reading into the 
record The Process and Expectations of the Delegate. (Appendix A) 
 

1.4​Up to two (2) individuals may serve as spokespersons for any delegation and no other 
members of the delegation shall address the Board, except by the request/permission of the 
Chair. The number of spokespersons will not change the maximum delegation allotment of 
five (5) minutes. 

 
1.5​In an effort to conduct efficient Board/Committee meetings, once approved delegations 

have been heard, Trustees may ask questions for clarification purposes only. There will be 
no engagement or debate between the Board of Trustees, Board staff and the official 
spokesperson of the delegation. 

 
1.6​A Trustee may ask up to two (2) clarifying questions of the delegate. The Chair reserves 

the right to limit the length of the responses. 
 

1.7​ All delegation presentations must consent to being livestreamed during the meeting. 
 

1.8​ Virtual accommodations shall be provided to delegates upon request. 
 

1.9​ Delegates shall present concerns in a constructive manner and maintain a level of 
decorum which will allow meetings to proceed effectively. Delegates are not permitted to 
make negative or derogatory statements. 

 
1.10​ During a delegation, should the delegate use offensive language or the name/title/position 

of any person in a negative, critical or derogatory manner, directly or indirectly, the Chair   
shall terminate the delegate’s presentation. 

 
1.11​ Any sitting Trustee may call a point of order during a delegate’s presentation. The Chair    

will rule on its validity; if valid, the delegation ends; if not, the delegate continues. This does 
not reduce the delegate’s allotted speaking time. 

 
1.12​​ In accordance with Policy 106 Delegations to the Board Section 3.5, written delegations shall 

be copied by the Senior Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee Services on 
color paper and placed on a table in the meeting room. 

 
1.13​ A letter of acknowledgement will be sent to each delegate, confirming the conclusion of 

the delegation process. 
 
 
 

 36



 

 
1.14​ Violations of Policy and Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board will not be tolerated and 

may result in a person being directed to leave, restricting/prohibiting attendance at future 
meetings and/or all YCDSB properties, or being subject to criminal charges depending on 
the nature of the conduct. 

 
2.​ PRESENTATION OF A PETITION 

 
2.1​An individual or group wishing to present a petition as part of their delegation to the Board 

must ensure that a copy of the petition is received by the Senior Coordinator to the Director 
of Education and Trustee Services by email no later than noon on the last business day 
6:00 p.m. on the Sunday before the Board meeting. 

 
2.2​Paper petitions shall contain original signatures only, written directly on the face of the 

petition, along with printed names, addresses, postal codes and email addresses. 

2.3​Electronic petitions will require a name, valid email address which may only be associated 
with one signatory, resident address, telephone number and postal code. 

 
2.4​For certification, the threshold for valid signatures is 25 for paper petitions and 500 for 

electronic petitions. To be valid, the signature must be that of a resident of York Region. 
There is no minimum age requirement for anyone signing a petition, and one person cannot 
sign for a group. 

 
2.5​An individual or delegation wishing to present a petition to the Board related to a specific Pupil 

Accommodation Review shall only be received by the Board of Trustees at a Special Meeting 
of the Board in accordance with Policy 713 Pupil Accommodation Review of Schools. 

2.6​If a Trustee receives a petition from their community, they must ensure that it complies with the 
petition guidelines outlined in section 2.2 to 2.5 of this procedure, before presenting it at a 
Board meeting during approval of the agenda. 

 
3.​ DELEGATIONS RELATED TO A PUPIL ACCOMMODATION REVIEW OF SCHOOLS 

 
3.1​All public delegations related to a specific Pupil Accommodation Review shall only be 

received by the Board of Trustees at the Special Meeting of the Board in accordance with 
Policy 713 Pupil Accommodation Review of Schools and this policy. 

3.2​Members of the public will be given the opportunity to provide feedback on a Final Staff 
Report with Community Consultation (Report 2) through public delegations to the Board of 
Trustees at a Special Meeting of the Board no later than ten (10) business days after a Final 
Staff Report with Community Consultation (Report 2) is publicly posted. 

3.3​The Special Meeting of the Board to receive public delegations related to a Final Staff 
Report with Community Consultation (Report 2) shall be announced and advertised publicly 
by the Board through a range of communication methods and shall be posted on the 
Board’s website. 

 

 

 

 37



 

 

3.4​In accordance with Ministry Guidelines and in alignment with Policy 713 Pupil Accommodation 
Review of Schools, there is no limit to the number of delegations approved for presentation at 
the Special Meeting of the Board as it is designated solely to receiving input to a Final Staff 
Report with Community Consultation (Report 2). There may be occasions where the number 
of delegation requests received exceeds the time allotment of the Special Meeting of the 
Board. If this occurs a date and time for the Board to reconvene the Special Meeting of the 
Board will 
be confirmed by the Chair of the Board and communicated to community members stakeholders. 
 

3.5​An individual or delegation wishing to give input to the Board related to a Final Staff Report 
with Community Consultation (Report 2) may notify the Senior Coordinator to the Director of 
Education and Trustee Services at any time prior to the start of the Special Meeting of the 
Board or notify designated personnel at any time during the Special Meeting of the Board. A 
copy of Admin 29(c) for completion will be distributed to the individual or delegation. 

3.6​One person shall serve as spokesperson for a group. Additional written material in support of 
the presentation may be provided to Trustees at the meeting, but shall be provided to the 
Senior Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee Services for inclusion in the 
Final Staff Report with Public Delegations Addendum (Report 3). 

 
3.7​Each presentation of input shall be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes. 

 
3.8​Feedback received through the presentation of public delegations related to a Final Staff 

Report with Community Consultation (Report 2) shall be included in the Final Staff Report with 
Public Delegations Addendum (Report 3). 

 
 

4.​ APPENDICES 
 

Admin 29(a) Public Request for Delegations and Petitions 
 

Admin 29(c) Public Request for Delegations Related to a Pupil Accommodation Review 
 

Admin 20 - Policy 101 - Appendix 4 Form Rationale for the Development, Review or Revision of a 
Policy 
 
Appendix A The Process and Expectations of a Delegate 
 

 38



 

 
 

 
R 

Board Form Board Form No. 
Governance Admin 29A - 106 

Classification Retention 
GOV 11 P 

Approved Date Revision Date 
March 2022 March 2025 

YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
PUBLIC REQUEST FOR DELEGATIONS AND PETITIONS 

Please read Policy and Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board prior to filling out this form. Each individual/group is allowed a 
maximum of five (5) minutes to give a delegation. 

 
1)​ INDIVIDUAL MAKING THE REQUEST: 

Name 
 

Residential 
Address: 

 

 
Contact 
Number: 

  
Email Address: 

 

 
Name of group being represented (if applicable): 

 
Name of school (if applicable): 

 
Are you a York Catholic District School Board employee?​ Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Is this request related to a motion and/or decision of the Board?​ Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Agenda Topic: 

 
Are you a parent/guardian of a student enrolled in a YCDSB school?​ Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Are you a resident of York Region?​ Yes ☐ No ☐ 

2)​ SPOKESPERSON(S) - Not to exceed two (2) people 
 

Name: 

 

 
Residential 
Address: 

 

 
Contact 
Number
: 

  
Email Address: 

 
 

 
5 

 

39



 

 
 

Name: 
 

 
Residential 
Address: 

 

 
Contact 
Number
: 

  
Email Address: 

 

 
3)​ SPECIFIC STATEMENT OF ISSUE (MAX 50 WORDS): 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4)​ IF APPLICABLE, YOUR KEY RECOMMENDATIONS/SUGGESTIONS TO 

ADDRESS THE PROBLEM/ISSUE (MAX 50 WORDS): 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5)​ SUBMIT ATTACHMENTS 

 
 

Please Note: 

An individual or group wishing to make a delegation to the Board regarding an item that appears on the 
agenda must ensure that the completed Admin. 29(a) form and all written (verbatim speech) and electronic 
materials/presentations are received by the Senior Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee 
Services by email at board.delegations@ycdsb.ca no later than noon on the last business day 6:00 p.m. on 
the Sunday before the Board meeting. 

An individual or group wishing to present a petition as part of their delegation to the Board must ensure that 
a copy of the petition is received by the Senior Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee 
Services by email at board.delegations@ycdsb.ca no later than noon on the last business day 6:00 p.m. 
on the Sunday before the Board meeting. 

 
Form prepared by: ​  

 
Date: ​  
I am aware that my delegation presentation will be livestreamed during the Board 
Meeting. Signature: ​  

 

40

mailto:board.delegations@ycdsb.ca
mailto:board.delegations@ycdsb.ca


 

 
 

EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

If your presentation is in an electronic format (PowerPoint, Slides, Audio, Video) the information you 
provide will help us support you during the presentation. Please email a copy of the electronic 
presentation no later than noon on the last business day prior to the scheduled Board or Committee 
meeting. 
Email Presentation to board.delegations@ycdsb.ca. 

 
Please specify technology requirements needed: 

☐​ Presentation (PowerPoint, Google Slide, Keynote) with no audio and video embedded 
☐​ Presentation (PowerPoint, Google Slide, Keynote) with audio and video embedded 
☐​ Internet Needed (Example: playing YouTube video or reference to a website) 

Other: ​ ​  

 
ACCOMODATIONS 

The York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) is committed to fostering an inclusive and accessible 
delegation process in accordance with the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA) and 
Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (IASR). The Board will make every reasonable effort to 
ensure that individuals of all abilities can fully participate in delegation presentations. 

To support equitable access, the Board will provide accommodations upon request. Individuals requiring 
accommodations or seeking information regarding physical accessibility are encouraged to contact the 
Senior Coordinator to the Director of Education and Trustee Services at board.delegations@ycdsb.ca no 
later than noon on the last business day 6:00 p.m. on the Sunday before the scheduled Board meeting. 

YCDSB remains dedicated to upholding accessibility standards and ensuring that all voices within the 
community are heard and respected in the decision-making process. 

 
DELEGATE RESPONSIBILITIES 

As a delegate presenting to the Board, I acknowledge and agree to the following responsibilities: 

☐​ To present concerns in a positive and constructive manner. 

☐​ To maintain a level of decorum which will allow meetings to proceed effectively. 

☐​ To refrain from the use of abusive or derogatory language. 

☐​ To refrain from making negative or derogatory personal references. 

☐​ To refrain from asking questions or engaging in cross-debate with other delegates, staff, or 
Trustees of the Board. 

 
Violations of Policy and Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board will not be tolerated and may 
result in a person being directed to leave, restricting/prohibiting attendance at future meetings 
and/or all YCDSB properties, or being subject to criminal charges depending on the nature of the 
conduct. 

 41

mailto:board.delegations@ycdsb.ca
mailto:board.delegations@ycdsb.ca


 

 
R 

Board Form Board Form No. 
Governance Admin 29C - 106 

Classification Retention 
GOV 11 P 

Approved Date Revision Date 
March 2022 March 2024 

YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
 

 
PUBLIC REQUEST FOR A DELEGATION RELATED TO A PUPIL ACCOMMODATION REVIEW 

 
Please Note: 
Each individual/group is allowed a maximum of five (5) minutes to present input related to a Pupil Accommodation Review. 
Input received from delegates will become the property of the Board and will be included as an addendum to Report 3 (refer to 
Policy 713: School Pupil Accommodation Reviews). This form must be submitted to designated Board personnel for inclusion in 
the Report immediately following the delegation. 

 
 

1)​ INDIVIDUAL MAKING THE REQUEST: 
 

 
Name: 

 

 
Address: 

 

 
Contact Number: 

  
Email Address: 

 

 
Name of school (if applicable): 

 
Identify the applicable geographical area being addressed (insert geographical area): 

 
2)​ SPOKESPERSON (an individual or one designated person to represent a 
group of individuals, if applicable): 

 

 
Name: 

 

 
Address: 

 

 
Contact 
Number
: 

  
Email Address: 

 

 

 42



 

 
 

3)​ SPECIFIC STATEMENT OF ISSUE: 
 
 

 

 

4)​ SUMMARY OF KEY PRESENTATION POINTS: 
 
 

 43



 

 
 
 
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

                                  Rationale for the Development, Review or Revision of a 
Policy 

 

 
 
INDICATE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:    STAFF ​ STAKEHOLDER INTERNAL/EXTERNAL PARTNER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R  Board Form Board Form No. 
Governance Admin 20 - 101 

Classification Retention 
GOV 09 P 

Approved Date Revision Date 
  

May 2021 March 2024 

44



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SIGNATURE OF REQUESTOR: 

DATE: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 45



 

 

 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Appendix A 
​  
​  
​ ​         Process and Expectations of the Delegate 
​ ​        
 

“The York Catholic District School Board values hearing 
the perspectives of our community partners. As such, 
Policy 106, “Delegations to the Board,” establishes a 
process for hearing delegations at meetings of the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
For those watching these delegations, the opinions 
expressed are those of the speaker and may not 
necessarily reflect the perspective of the Board. The 
content of the delegations has been reviewed in 
advance to ensure it meets the YCDSB’s commitment 
to positive, respectful, and civil behaviour. If a speaker 
departs from their submitted content, I will terminate 
their delegation. 
 
Trustees will listen closely to delegations, but 
according to our Operational Bylaws, Trustees are only 
allowed to ask clarifying questions. 
 
To our delegate, thank you very much for joining us 
tonight. You have FIVE minutes at which time,  
the microphone will be turned off.” 

 46



 

 

YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
  

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

2026 
 
The Executive Committee meets to review and set Board Meeting Agendas.  The Executive 
Committee does not approve items and/or bind the Board.  All items requiring Board approval 
shall be brought to the Board as a whole for approval. 
 
1. Purpose/Mandate: 

1.1   To prioritize agenda items and set the Board agenda accordingly. 
1.2 To set the annual calendar of Meetings. 
1.3 To review notices of motion received subsequent to the last Regular Board Meeting and 

determine appropriate action or disposition. 
1.4 To designate matters if/as appropriate to committees and/or Board or to staff through 

the Director of Education and to report such designation in the minutes. 
1.5 To follow the Board mandated procedure of referring matters of litigation to a meeting 

of the full Board.  When time constraints are an issue, the committee may direct 
administration to obtain a prior legal opinion (to be presented with the legal matter) 
and/or request the presence of a legal representative at the upcoming Board meeting.  
Board members will be notified of such action.  

1.6 To act as directed by Board Policy with regards to attendance of trustees at conferences; 
1.7 To recommend and/or plan initiatives which promote the understanding and practice of 

our Catholic Faith among trustees and staff. 
1.8 To organize trustee workshops/retreats. 
1.9 To recommend and/or provide opportunities for professional development for Trustees. 

 
2. Committee Membership: 
 2.1  Chair 
 2.2  Vice-Chair 
 2.3  Trustee(s) (1) 
 
3. Resource Personnel: 
 3.1  Director of Education 
 3.2  Associate Director  
 3.3  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board (as needed) 

3.4  Administrative Assistant – Director’s Office 
 3.5  Manager, Communications and Marketing (as needed) 
 
4. Meeting Schedule:  
 4.1  The Executive Committee will meet prior to each Regular Board Meeting.  
 
5. Quorum:  
 5.1  Subject to the provisions of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act two (2) Trustees   
                  shall constitute a quorum. 

2026 Trustee Membership: 
Maria Iafrate, Chair 

Jennifer Wigston, Vice-Chair 
Angela Saggese, Trustee 

 

 
Last Revision/Approval 

Date:  December 16, 2025 
 

47



York Catholic District School Board 
 

REPORT NO. 2026:01 of the 
 

POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE  
 

 

To:​ Board of Trustees​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​               December 16, 2025 
 

A session of the Policy Review Committee was held on December 1, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: 
Committee Members:​ ​ In person:​ A. Saggese, J. Wigston  
​           Virtual:  ​ F. Alexander, M.Barbieri, A. Grella                             
                                    Absent with Notice:         C. Cotton, J. DiMeo 
Other Trustees:​ ​ ​ ​ E. Crowe, M. Iafrate 
Administration: ​ ​ In Person: ​ R. Antunes, A. Arcadi, M. Brosens, A. Burnell-Gentile, J. De Faveri,                 
​ ​ ​ ​ G. De Girolamo, A. Driscoll, K. Elgharbawy, N. Galatianos,  
​ ​ ​ ​ A. Iafrate, T. Laliberte, C. McNeil, S. Morrow, L. Paonessa,  
​ ​ ​ ​ J. Powers, J. Sarna, L. Sawicky 
                                      Absent with notice:       J. Chiutsi 
                                                         Virtual:        S. Wright                                                                                               
Recording:​  ​ ​ ​ A. McMahon 
Presiding: ​ ​ ​ ​ A. Saggese, Newly Elected Chair 
 
Election of Officers for 2025-2026: 
Chair:  A. Saggese 
Vice-Chair:  M. Barbieri 
 
ACTION ITEMS:  
 

1.​ THAT the Terms of Reference for the Policy Review Committee be approved. 
 
2.​ THAT the Board approve the following revised policy: 

Policy 103 Communications Policy 
 

3.   THAT the Board approve the following revised policy: 
​ Policy 201 Healthy Schools 
 

3.   THAT the Board approve the following revised policy: 
       Policy 201A Healthy Schools - Eating and Nutrition 
 
4.    THAT the Board approve the following revised policy: 
​  Policy 201B Healthy Schools - Physical Activity 
 
5. ​ THAT the Board approve the following revised policy: 
​ Policy 701 Access to School & Board Premises 
 
6.​ THAT the Board approve the following new policy: 
​ Policy 813 Use of Proceeds of Disposition (POD) 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
i)   Policy 106 Delegations to the Board and Procedure 
ii)  Policy 801 Use of Board and School Funds for Recognition or Acknowledgement  
iii)  Video Recordings of Board/Committee Meetings 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
i)  Procedure 701 Elementary Administrative Locked Door Protocol 
      
 
 

 
 

48



FUTURE ITEMS:  
Policy 112 Privacy and Freedom of Information 
Policy 210 Pediculosis (Head Lice) 
Policy 303 School Organized and Continuing Education 
Policy 405A Appointments to Supervisory Officer Positions 
Policy 405B Appointments to Academic Positions of Responsibility 
Policy 405C Appointments to Principal and Vice Principal Positions 
Policy 704 Community Planning & Partnerships 
Policy 709 Naming of Schools 
Policy 801 Use of Board and School Funds for Recognition or Acknowledgement 
Policy 808 Travel, Meals & Expense Reimbursement 
 
Future meeting dates for Policy Review Committee:  
February 3, 2026, April 7, 2026, June 2, 2026 
 
 
Adjournment –    7:46 p.m.                                                                                        A. Saggese, Committee Chair 

 
 

49



YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE 

(STANDING COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD) 
 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

(2025-2026) 
 
The Policy Review Committee will support the York Catholic District School Board’s Mission, Vision, 
Core Values and Strategic Commitments and good Governance as outlined within these terms of 
reference. 

 
1.​ Purpose/Mandate: 

1.1​ To serve as a liaison between the Board and administration on policy matters; 
1.2​ To provide input and direction on Board policy; 
1.3​ To review draft policy; 
1.4​ To ensure that appropriate stakeholder input is sought during policy formation; 
1.5​ To review and update existing policies; and, 
1.6​ To bring recommendations for policy approval, development or termination to 

the Board. 
 

2.​ Expected Outcome of the Committee’s Work: 
2.1​ To ensure that the Board is governed by effective, concise and relevant policies. 

 
3.​ Committee Membership: 

3.1​ The Policy Review Committee will be comprised of 7 Trustees. 
 

4.​ Resource Personnel: 
4.1​ Director of Education 
4.2​ Associate Director, Strategic Leadership 
4.3​ Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer of the Board 
4.4​ Administrative Assistant, Director’s Office 
4.5​ Policy Advisor to the Associate Director 

 
5.​ Meeting Schedule and Time: 

5.1​ The Policy Review Committee will meet at least 3-4 times/year or as needed. 
 
 

 
Trustee Membership: 

 
F.Alexander 
M.Barbieri 
C.Cotton 
J.DiMeo 
A.Grella  

A.Saggese 
J. Wigston 

 
Last Revision/Approval Date: 

December 1, 2025 

50



YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
BOARD POLICY 

Policy Section 
Governance/Board 

Policy Number 
103 

Former Policy # Page 
1 of 5 

Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 

June 17, 2014 September 26, 2017 

POLICY TITLE:​ COMMUNICATIONS POLICY 

1. PURPOSE

The York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) recognizes the key role of effective
communication in supporting the Board’s mission to educate and inspire all students to reach
their full potential in a safe and caring environment. The Board has a responsibility to engage in
proactive, timely and open communication with all of its stakeholders partners to strengthen
relationships, promote programs and activities of the Board and to celebrate the values of
Catholic education.

The Board is committed to ensuring that all communications are inclusive, equitable, culturally
responsive, and trauma-informed, reflecting the diverse cultures, languages, abilities, and
socio-economic contexts of its community. Moreover, the York Catholic District School Board is
responsible for providing information and communications that are barrier-free and accessible in
accordance with the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act  (AODA), 2005 and the
regulations supporting this Act the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation (IASR).

2. POLICY STATEMENT OBJECTIVE

It is the policy of the York Catholic District School Board to encourage, promote and maintain
open, accessible, timely and transparent communication with both its internal and external
stakeholders partners (students, parents, staff, trustees, parishes, community and education
partners and members of the media); that is clear, accurate and supportive of the Board’s
mission to provide quality Catholic education in unique, faith-based, learning environments.

3. PARAMETERS

3.1​ Communication between the Board and its stakeholders partners shall celebrate the
value of Catholic education. 

3.2​ Communication, including communication disseminated through social media (Twitter) 
shall strengthen relationships, support, promote and increase awareness of the York 
Catholic District School Board’s programs, services, successes and accomplishments 
including, but not limited to, school openings and blessings, messages to the community, 
synervoice messages, special events and media relations. 

151



 

3.3​ Communication between the Board and its stakeholders partners shall contain accurate 
information that is accessible, timely, clear and transparent.  

3.4​ The Board shall establish and maintain positive relationships with media, respond to 
media requests in a timely manner and proactively promote programs, services, activities 
and initiatives of the Board and its schools. 
 

3.5​ Conduct by a Board Employee that is contrary to the parameters and responsibilities 
outlined in this policy shall be addressed in a manner consistent with the Board’s YCDSB 
Policy 412 Progressive Discipline of Employees Policy. 

3.6​ Upon request, and in accordance with the Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation 
(IASR) of Ontario, the Board shall ensure the website is maintained with accurate and 
up-to-date information, provide or arrange for the provision of accessible formats and 
communication supports or arrange for the provision of a comparable resource for 
persons with disabilities. 
 

3.7​ The Multilingual Services Department shall assist Board/School Staff in communicating 
with parents/guardians through the provision of or arrangement for translated materials 
where English is a second language or English proficiency is limited. The Board shall 
provide or arrange for translation and interpretation services, upon request, to support 
effective communication with parents/guardians, in accordance with the Accessibility for 
Ontarians with Disabilities Act and the Ontario Human Rights Code. 
 

3.8​ The Board shall maintain confidentiality and privacy with respect to staff matters in 
accordance with legislative requirements contained within the Employment Standards Act, 
the Occupational Health & Safety Act, the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, and the 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 

 
4.​ RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1​ Chair of the Board 
4.1.1​ To be the official spokesperson for the Board when addressing the media on all 

matters pertaining to Board budget, labour relations and policy decisions. 
 

4.2​ Director of Education 
4.2.1​ To be the official spokesperson for the Board on administrative or pedagogical 

operations. 
4.2.2​ To oversee compliance of the YCDSB Policy 103 Communications: Public 

Relations Policy. 
4.2.3​ To ensure the Board of Trustees are informed on matters requiring attention or 

sensitivity. 
4.2.4​ To ensure Trustees are kept informed of key messaging. 
 

4.3​ Communications Department 
4.3.1​ To develop and implement communication plans and strategies in support of the 

York Catholic District School Board’s priorities and objectives, ensuring 
consistency and timely information, while adhering to the Board’s Visual Identity 
and Branding Manual. 

4.3.2​ To support the communication needs of the Board of Trustees, Director of 
Education, Senior Administration and Principals by drafting communications as 
required. 

 252



 

4.3.3​ To oversee all communication activities as determined by the Director of 
Education. 

4.3.4​ To oversee and manage the layout, design and Board-related content for Board 
and School websites. 

4.3.5​ To coordinate crisis communication in collaboration with the Director of 
Education, Senior Administration, and affected schools, ensuring that timely and 
accurate information is shared with the public and media. 

 

4.4​ Senior Administration 
4.4.1​ To notify the Director of Education, the Communications Department and/or 

Trustees of any situation/incident that they believe is of concern. 
4.4.2​ To be the official spokesperson on Board programs or school issues as directed 

by the Director of Education or Communications Manager the Senior Manager: 
Brand, Marketing & Communications. 
 

4.5​ Principals 
4.5.1​ To notify the Communications Department of all media requests received directly 

at the school prior to providing a response. 
4.5.2​ To contact the appropriate Superintendent and Communications Department 

regarding sensitive and/or controversial matters and to use their expertise when 
drafting appropriate communication. 

4.5.3​ To share school information and positive news stories with the media, if 
appropriate, upon consultation with and assistance from the Communications 
Department. 

4.5.4​ To share school information  
4.5.5​ To extend an invitation to the Director of Education and local Trustee(s) when 

there is an opportunity for the inclusion of a message and/or letter of 
congratulations in a school program/publication. 

4.5.6​ To be the official spokesperson for the school. 
4.5.7​ To familiarize themselves with communication protocols and the appropriate use 

of the Board Logo. 
4.5.8​ To ensure that school websites are up to date and contain accurate and timely 

messaging. 
4.5.9​ To post all school communication shared with the parent community, including all 

Catholic School Council (CSC) Agendas and Minutes on the school website as 
soon as approved. 

 
4.6​ Employees 

4.6.1​ To refer sensitive matters to their immediate supervisor for further action and/or 
response. The supervisor shall then inform the appropriate Superintendent and 
the Communications Department of any situation/incident that is of concern. 

 
5.​ DEFINITIONS 

5.1​ Barriers to Accessibility 
Accessibility Standards address issues that pose major barriers for people with disabilities. 
A barrier could be a physical barrier, an architectural barrier, an information or 
communication barrier, an attitudinal barrier, a technological barrier, a policy or practice. 

 353



 

5.2​ Employee 
Any individual hired by the York Catholic District School Board to perform services in 
exchange for a salary or an hourly wage on a casual, temporary or permanent basis. 
 

5.3​ External Stakeholders Partners 
A person, group of people or an organization that holds a vested interest in the school 
community, including, but not limited to: 
5.3.1​ All levels of Government 
5.3.2​ Community Members 
5.3.3​ Education partners/organizations 
5.3.4​ Ministry of Education 
5.3.5​ Media 

5.4​ Internal Stakeholders Partners 
A person, group of people or an organization that holds a vested interest in the school 
community, including, but not limited to: 
5.4.1​ Parents 
5.4.2​ Parishes 
5.4.3​ School Administrators 
5.4.4​ Senior Administrators 
5.4.5​ Staff (School, Centrally assigned and/or Contract) 
5.4.6​ Students 
5.4.7​ Trustees 
 

5.5​ Media 
The means of communication to the public through various traditional or digital mediums,: 
including radio, television, newspapers, magazines, or blogs and social media, that reach 
or influence people widely. 
 

5.6​ Social Media 
Encompasses software, applications, e-mail, and web sites, which enable users to interact, 
create and exchange information online. 

 
6.​ CROSS REFERENCES 

Legislation 
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), 2005  
Employment Standards Act, 2000 
Ontario Human Rights Code 
Integrated Accessibility Standards Regulation, Ontario Regulation 191/11 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chapter M.56 
1990 
Occupational Health & Safety Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.0.1 Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 1997, 
S.O. 1997 
 
 
YCDSB Policies 
YCDSB Policy 110 Communications: Trustee/Administration  
YCDSB Policy 317 119 Electronic Communications and Social Media  
YCDSB Policy 412 Progressive Discipline of Employees 
YCDSB Policy 601 Accessibility Standards for Customer Services 
YCDSB Policy 609 Accessibility Standards for Information and Communication  

 454

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05a11
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/00e41
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/110191
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90o01
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/97w16
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/97w16


 

YCDSB Policy 702 Solemn Blessing and Official Opening of New Schools & Additions /    
                               Milestone School Anniversaries 
YCDSB Visual Identity and Branding Manual, 2012 2016 
 
 

 
Approval by Board​ September 26, 2017 

 

Date 
Effective Date​ September 27, 2017 

 

Date 
Revision Date(s)​ September 26, 2017 

 

Date 
Review Date​ September 2022 

 

Date 

 555



YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
BOARD POLICY 

Policy Section 
Students 

Policy Number 
201 

Former Policy # Page 
1 of 4 

Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 

September 27, 2011 October 11, 2011 
May 8, 2012 

June 20, 2017 
June 21, 2022 

POLICY TITLE:​ HEALTHY SCHOOLS 

SECTION A 

1. PURPOSE

It is the belief of the York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) that:
1.1​ The teachings of Christ are the primary pillar that support a Healthy School; 
1.2​ All students and staff are entitled to work and learn in Healthy Schools that are 

responsive to needs identified in relation to the Board’s Multi-Year Strategic Plan, and 
in accordance with the Ministry of Education direction and resources Guidelines; 

1.3​ A Healthy School positively impacts student achievement and success; and 
1.4​ A Healthy School assists students in achieving Catholic Graduate Expectations. 
1.5​ Healthy Schools must intentionally identify and remove barriers to participation and 

access, ensuring equity and inclusion for students and families from equity-deserving 
groups. 

2. OBJECTIVE

It is the policy of the York Catholic District School Board to promote and sustain a Healthy
School environment, and to encourage an active healthy lifestyle.

3. PARAMETERS

3.1​ The Ministry of Education’s Health and Physical Education Curriculum, Healthy
Schools Framework and Foundations for a Healthy School resource, will guide all 
school community members in the development of a Healthy School. 

3.2​ The Healthy Schools Framework Foundations for a Healthy School resource 
identifies these essential elements to creating a Healthy School Environment: 
the following interrelated areas that contribute to a healthy learning environment: 
3.2.1​ Curriculum, Teaching & Learning 
3.2.2​ Home, School, Parish & Community Partnerships 
3.2.3​ Mental Health & Well-Being Strategy 
3.2.4​ School & Classroom Leadership 
3.2.5​ Social & Physical Environments 
3.2.6​ Student Engagement  

156



 

3.3​ The Healthy Schools Framework offers curriculum connections, classroom resources 
and weblinks related to Nutrition, Physical Activity (including Daily Physical Activity, 
DPA), Dental Health, Substance Use, Addictions, and Related Behaviours, Injury 
Prevention, Handwashing, and Sun Safety Awareness. 

3.4​ Schools will establish a Healthy Schools Committee comprised of administration, staff, 
students, parents and/or community members.  

3.5​ Using the Healthy School Framework, Healthy School Committees will establish an 
annual Healthy School SMART goal, with appropriate strategies and timelines that are 
based on the unique needs of each school community.  

 
3.6​ Policy 201A Eating and Nutrition and Policy 201B Physical Activity should be 

reviewed annually by the Healthy Schools Committee when setting goals.  
 
 
4.​ RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1​Director of Education 
4.1.1.​ To oversee compliance with the Healthy Schools policy. 

4.2​Superintendent of Education overseeing Healthy Schools 
4.2.1​ To oversee the Board’s processes to promote and sustain a Healthy School 

environment in alignment with the Ministry’s Healthy School Strategy.  
4.2.2​ To support and act as a resource to the Health and Physical Education 

Consultant. 

4.3​Superintendents of Education 
4.3.1​ To oversee the Board’s processes to promote and sustain a healthy 

school environment in alignment with the Foundations for a Healthy 
School resource. 

4.3.2​ To build system capacity and understanding of the Foundations for a 
Healthy Schools Framework resource and how it connects to the 
YCDSB’s Vision. and Religious and Family Life Education and Health 
Programs. 

4.3.3​ To collaborate with schools and community partners (parish, municipal, 
regional and provincial) to promote a common understanding of a Healthy 
School. 

4.3.4​ To share successful practices and advise on future directions. 

4.4​ Principals and Vice-Principals 
4.4.1​ To determine, as appropriate, support school participation in the OPHEA 

(Ontario Physical and Health Education Association) Healthy Schools 
Recognition Program led by the Ontario Ministry of Education and the York 
Region Healthy Schools Program. 

4.4.2​ To review Policies 201 Healthy Schools, 201A Healthy Schools - Eating & 
Nutrition and 201B Healthy Schools - Physical Activity, periodically with staff. 

4.4.3​ To provide leadership and learning opportunities to teachers, students, staff, 
parents/guardians, school councils and community members to implement 
and sustain the a Healthy Schools Framework. 

4.4.4​ To create a Healthy School Committee (comprised of staff, parents, students 
and community partners), who will use the Healthy Schools Framework to 
develop and implement an Action Plan for selected health topics. 

4.4.5​ To support students to participate in the Healthy Schools Committee and/or 

 257



 

related activities to help meet the Catholic Graduate Expectations of  
4.4.6​ responsible citizenship and development of self-directed, responsible, lifelong 

learning. 
4.4.7​ To use the Healthy Schools Framework as a Foundations for a Healthy 

School resource to support the development and implementation of the 
School Improvement Plan (e.g., in setting safe school goals as well as 
religious goals). 

4.4.8​ To support staff health by providing information on the Employee 
Assistance Program and support participation in the Employee Wellness 
Program and Faith Ambassadors Activities. 

4.5​ School Staff 
4.5.1​ To provide opportunities for students to increase their knowledge, skills, and 

attitudes with regards to the Healthy Schools Framework. 
4.5.2​ To integrate the Healthy Schools Framework Foundations for a Healthy School 

resource into daily practices. 
4.5.3​ To participate in the Healthy School Committee and/or related activities. 
4.5.4​ To model healthy behaviours. 
4.5.5​ To provide opportunities for student leadership on the Healthy Schools 

Committee in promoting Healthy Schools and related activities that help 
meet the Catholic Graduate Expectations of responsible citizenship and 
development of self-directed, responsible, lifelong learning. 

4.6​ School Councils 
4.6.1​ To support, at the discretion of the Principal, school participation in the 

OPHEA Healthy Schools Recognition Program led by the Ontario Ministry 
of Education. and the York Region Healthy Schools Program. 

4.6.2​ To provide educational opportunities for families around this policy. 
4.6.3​ To participate in the Healthy Schools Committee and/or related activities. 
4.6.4​ To support and promote the Healthy Schools Framework Foundations for a 

Healthy School resource as an integral part of activities within the school 
community. 

4.6.5​ To intentionally engage families from diverse backgrounds to ensure culturally 
responsive and inclusive approaches to health and wellness. 

4.7​ Students, Parents/Guardians, and Community Members 
4.7.1​ To take opportunities to acquire and apply knowledge and skills that develop 

and sustain positive health habits in their home environments and school 
communities. 

4.7.2​ To participate in the Healthy School Committee and/or related activities. 

 
5.​ DEFINITIONS 

5.1​ Daily Practices 
Daily practices include but are not limited to curriculum delivery, religious celebrations, 
co-curricular activities, school and community events. 

 
5.2​ Foundations for a Healthy School 

A Ministry of Education resource that identifies interconnected areas supporting student 
health and well-being across the school community. 
 

5.3​ Healthy School 
A healthy school provides opportunities for all school community members to make 

 358



 

healthy choices in a working and learning environment that is respectful of their 
spiritual, social, emotional and physical well-being. A Healthy School is also one that 
ensures equity of access and participation, where the unique cultural, socio-economic, 
linguistic, faith, ability, and identity-based needs of students and families are recognized 
and respected. 
 

5.4​ Healthy School Framework  
A framework that outlines school, community programs that can be utilized to 
implement healthy behaviour changes. 

5.5​ School Community Members 
Includes, but is not limited to, parents/guardians, administrators, teaching staff, staff, 
students and members of the local parish community. 
 

6.​ CROSS REFERENCES 
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA)  
Ministry of Education, Healthy Schools: Sabrina's Law 
Ontario Ministry of Children and Youth Services Student Nutrition Programs Nutrition  

Guidelines, 2018 
Government of Ontario 
Ontario Ministry of Education Healthy Food for Healthy Schools Act, 2008 
Ontario Ministry of Education Trans Fat Standards Regulation 
Ontario Ministry of Education’s Policy/Program Memorandum No. 150 School Food and   

Beverage Policy 
Ontario Society of Nutrition Professionals in Public Health, October 2010 
Sabrina’s Law, An Act to Protect Anaphylactic Pupils 2005 
Ontario Human Rights Code 

 
YCDSB Policies 
YCDSB Policy 201A Healthy Schools: Eating & Nutrition 
YCDSB Policy 201B Healthy Schools: Physical Activity 
YCDSB Policy 209 Protection of Students with Anaphylaxis  
YCDSB Policy 603A School Fundraising 

 
Resources 
The Ontario Curriculum, Grades 1–8: Health and Physical Education, 2019 
The Ontario Curriculum, Grades 9–12: Health and Physical Education, 2015 
Ministry of Education Foundations for a Healthy School: A Companion Resource to the  

K–12 School Effectiveness Framework 
OPHEA Healthy Schools Recognition Program 
York Region Healthy Schools Program   

 
 

Approval by Board​ June 21, 2022 
 

Date 

Effective Date​ June 22, 2022 
 

Date 

Revision Dates​ June 21, 2022 
 

Date 

Review Date​ June 2026 
 

Date 
 459

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05a11
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/anaphylaxis.html
https://studentnutritionontario.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018_SNP_Program_Guidelines_ENG.pdf
https://studentnutritionontario.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018_SNP_Program_Guidelines_ENG.pdf
http://www.gov.on.ca/children
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/s08002
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/healthier.html#%3A~%3Atext%3DOn%20September%201%2C%202008%20the%2Cbeverages%20sold%20on%20their%20premises
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/healthier.html#%3A~%3Atext%3DOn%20September%201%2C%202008%20the%2Cbeverages%20sold%20on%20their%20premises
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://pvnccdsb.on.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/308-Appendix-A-Nutrition-Standards.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05s07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://draftohsc.wordpress.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/foundations-for-a-healthy-school-2014.pdf
https://draftohsc.wordpress.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/foundations-for-a-healthy-school-2014.pdf
https://ophea.net/introducing-healthy-schools-recognition-program
https://www.york.ca/health/healthy-schools/healthy-schools-program


             YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
BOARD POLICY 

Policy Section 
Students 

Policy Number 
201A 

Former Policy # Page 
1 of 10 

Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 

June 21, 2011 June 19, 2012 
June 20, 2017 
June 21, 2022 

POLICY TITLE: HEALTHY SCHOOLS - EATING AND NUTRITION 

SECTION A  

1. PURPOSE

The YCDSB York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) recognizes that education is about
the whole child and that healthy eating and nutrition practices, programs and curriculum
initiatives will help students optimize their learning potential. This policy ensures that the York
Catholic District School Board supports the Ministry Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 150:
School Food and Beverage Policy and provides a consistent message about food and nutrition
to all staff, students and school volunteers. By creating a healthy school nutrition environment,
schools will be supporting a Christ-centred learning philosophy, which includes staff and
students routinely pausing to give thanks for the gift of food and to bless the hands who have
helped to provide and prepare meals.

2. OBJECTIVE

It is the policy of the York Catholic District School Board to promote and sustain healthy school
nutrition environments and healthy behaviours by requiring all schools to develop Healthy Food
and Nutrition strategies through their Healthy School Committee that align with the Ministry’s
Ontario Health and Physical Education Curriculum, Healthy Schools Framework the Ministry of
Education’s Foundations for a Healthy School resource, as well as all relevant Ministry of
Education directives.

3. PARAMETERS

3.1​ All schools in the York Catholic DSB District School Board shall comply with the Ontario
Ministry of Education’s Healthy Food for Healthy Schools Act, 2008 and the School Food 
and Beverage Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 150):School Food and Beverage 
Policy (2010).  

3.2​ All Principals, in consultation with staff, and the Catholic School Council, and the local 
Healthy Schools Committee, shall be responsible for implementing and monitoring this 
policy and developing local strategies that align with the Foundations for a Healthy 
School resource Healthy Schools Framework. 

160



 

 

3.3​ Food and Beverages Sold 
Any food or beverages sold (e.g., catered lunch days, the cafeteria, sporting events) shall 
be in compliance with PPM 150. Providing food with Maximum Nutritional Value at school 
will help to educate students and families about healthy eating. Vendors shall be asked to 
sign a compliance letter to ensure that PPM 150 standards are met. (Board Forms: Admin 
120, 121) 

3.4​ Any food or beverages sold shall take into consideration cultural relevance and inclusive 
dietary options. 

3.5​ All vendors shall be asked to sign a compliance letter to ensure that PPM 150 standards are 
met. (Board Forms: Admin 120, 121) 

3.6​ Artificial Sweeteners 
The sale of food and beverages that provide minimum nutritional value and artificial 
sweeteners are not permitted (e.g., soft drinks). Artificial sweeteners in food and beverages 
that provide Maximum Nutritional Value (e.g., yogurt) are permitted. 

3.7​ Celebrations 
Any food or beverages offered for celebrations or as part of school-sanctioned contests 
events shall be in compliance with PPM 150. 

3.8​ Food or beverages are not to be given as a reward or withheld as a punishment. 
 

3.9​ Drinking water is to be freely available and accessible throughout the school day. 
Students are encouraged to provide a safe, reusable water bottle for this purpose. 

3.10​ Milk Program 
Elementary schools are encouraged to implement a daily milk program with plain or 
chocolate milk (skim, 1% or 2% MF) that meets the nutrition criteria for milk outlined in PPM 
150. All school milk programs shall comply with the nutrition standards set out in PPM 150. 

3.11​ Special-Event Days (e.g., Pancake Tuesdays, Fun Fair, Meet the Teacher BBQ): Ten 
Special event days are shall be allowed, as per PPM 150. Parent(s)/Guardian(s) are to be 
informed of the food/beverage items or allergens in advance of these days. Parents may 
contact the company/vendor for additional information. 

 
3.12​ All foods sold in Board schools must be reasonably priced. 

3.12.1​ In elementary schools, the Catholic School Council shall be involved in deciding the 
number of Hot Lunch days as well as the cost of the service provided to families., 
keeping in mind that many families may have several children at the school and 
that there may be peer pressure to participate in hot lunch programs. 

3.12.2​ In the secondary schools, the cafeteria menu and prices shall be shared reviewed 
annually by with the school’s Catholic School Council Healthy School Committee 
(which includes membership from the parent and student communities) keeping in 
mind variety and affordability. The Principal shall work with the Cafeteria operator 
to address any concerns or suggestions in a proactive manner. 

 
3.13​ In the secondary panel, there should be at least one vegetarian option on the daily cafeteria 

menu. 
 
 
 
 

 261



 

 

3.14​ Anaphylaxis  
The York Catholic District School Board Policy 2096 Protection of Students with Anaphylaxis 
Supporting Students with Prevalent Medical Conditions (Anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, 
and/or Epilepsy) in Schools is to be enforced. Schools shall ensure that dietary 
accommodations for medical/health-related conditions are considered and supported. 
 

3.15​ Food Safety 
Food preparation must comply complies with proper food safety practices and align with 
guidelines established by York Region Public Health. Principals are encouraged to work 
with York Region Community and Health Services to access food safety training for anyone 
handling food (e.g., staff, parent volunteers). 

3.16​ Hand washing 
There shall be adequate time to wash hands before lunch. It is strongly advised that students 
are given the opportunity to wash their hands before consuming food.  

3.17​ Role Modeling 
School Staff and volunteers are encouraged to be positive role models when choosing their 
meals and snacks, especially in the presence of students. 

3.18​ Time to Eat Lunch 
Students shall have at least 20 minutes to eat lunch from the time seated in elementary 
schools, and at least 40 minutes in secondary schools. Secondary school lunch periods 
should fall between 11:00 am and 2:00 pm. where possible. 

3.19​ Parent/Guardian Education 
School staff shall encourage Parents/Guardians to send nutritious lunches and snacks to 
school/events through positive role modeling and information provided in school 
newsletters/at events in collaboration with York Region Community and Health Services. 

3.20​ Student Nutrition Programs 
School staff/volunteers are encouraged to enrol and participate in implement universal 
Student Nutrition Programs. (healthy breakfast/snack programs) to ensure all students are 
ready to learn. These programs should be developed in consultation with York Region Food 
for Learning (www.foodforlearning.com) and the Ministry of Children and Youth Services 
Student Nutrition Program Guidelines (www.student.nutrition program.ca). 

3.21​ Nutrition Education for Students 
In elementary school, all students shall receive nutrition education via the Healthy Eating 
Component from the Ontario Health and Physical Education Curriculum (Grades 1-8), 
Healthy Living Strand. These concepts are reinforced in our Family Life curriculum. In 
secondary school, nutrition education is incorporated into appropriate areas of the 
curriculum to help develop lifelong decision making skills for healthy living. As part of 
integrating our Catholic values, staff and students routinely pause to give thanks for 
the gift of food and to bless the hands who have helped to provide and prepare our meals. 
As stewards of God's creation, we are called to use resources respectfully so that all share 
in the bounty that God has provided and no one goes hungry. 

3.22​ Nutrition Education and Fully Alive 
Nutrition education is integrated with the Fully Alive Family Life program and other Catholic 
education resources. 

3.23​ Nutrition Education for Staff 
All staff shall be encouraged to participate in regular nutrition training sessions. The York 

 362

https://www.foodforlearning.com/
https://www.foodforlearning.com/
http://www.foodforlearning.com/
https://www.ontario.ca/document/student-nutrition-program-nutrition-guidelines-2020
https://www.ontario.ca/page/student-nutrition-program


 

Catholic District School Board shall provide opportunities for professional development and 
encourage staff to have adequate nutrition knowledge (e.g., articles, workshops, and 
websites). 

3.24​ Community Partnerships 
Every effort shall be made to promote strategies to involve students, families, parish and 
the community (e.g., York Region Community Public Health and Health Services, York 
Region Nutrition Services, food vendors) in healthy eating education, and promoting and 
maintaining a healthy school nutrition environment. 
 
 

4.​ RESPONSIBILITIES 
4.1​ Director of Education 

4.1.1​ To oversee compliance with the Healthy Schools – Eating and Nutrition policy. 

4.2​ Superintendent of Education overseeing Healthy Schools 
4.2.1​ To oversee the Board’s processes for Healthy Schools in alignment with the 

Ministry’s Healthy School Strategy.  
4.2.2​ To support and act as a resource to the Health and Physical Education 

Consultant. 

4.3​ Superintendents of Education 
4.3.1​ To oversee the Board’s processes for Healthy Schools in alignment with the 

Foundations for a Healthy School resource and PPM 150. 
4.3.2​ To assist the school in promoting and supporting healthy eating and nutrition for 

students. 
4.3.3​ To share successful practices and develop future directions. 

4.4​ Principals and Vice-Principals 
4.4.1​ To support school participation in promoting healthy eating through both words and 

actions. 
4.4.2​ To provide leadership and learning opportunities to teachers, students, staff, parents, 

school councils and community members to implement and sustain healthy eating 
and nutrition in the school. 

4.4.3​ To work with the Healthy School Committee to provide information on healthy eating 
and nutrition. 

4.4.4​ To ensure that parent/guardian voices from diverse communities (including 
newcomers, Indigenous, equity-seeking and historically underrepresented) are 
meaningfully engaged in nutrition program planning and evaluation. 

4.5​ School Staff 
4.5.1​ To provide opportunities for students to increase their knowledge, skills, and 

attitudes with regards to healthy eating and nutrition. 
4.5.2​ To integrate healthy eating and nutrition into daily practices. 
4.5.3​ To model healthy behaviours. 

4.6​ School Councils 
4.6.1​ To support school participation efforts in promoting and supporting healthy eating 

and nutrition. 

4.7​ Students, Parents, Community Members 
4.7.1​ To take opportunities to acquire and apply knowledge and skills that develop and 

sustain positive healthy eating and nutrition in their home environments and school 
communities. 

4.7.2​ To offer feedback on school nutrition programming, menu options, pricing models, 
and barriers to participation (e.g., cost, culture, language, schedule) to support 

 463



 

continuous improvement. 
 
 

5.​ DEFINITIONS 
5.1​ Healthy Eating 

Healthy eating can be defined as the amount and variety of safe and culturally appropriate 
foods to provide the body with all the nutrients required, in adequate proportions. Nutrition is 
a major environmental influence in physical and mental growth and development in early life. 
Healthy eating should be an integral part of daily student life that contributes to the 
physiological, mental and social well-being of individuals. 
 

5.2​ Healthy School Nutrition Environment 
A school with a Healthy Nutrition Environment is one that promotes and supports healthy 
eating for students through both words and actions. The goal is to ensure consistency 
between lessons students learn in the classroom and the nutrition messages provided in the 
school environment; for example, in the cafeteria and vending machines, on “catered lunch” 
days, during special events and fundraising. 

5.3​ Nutrition Tools for Schools© (NTS) Nutrition Standards 
Nutrition standards that have been adapted from the Ministry of Education’s School Food and 
Beverage Policy (PPM 150) Nutrition Standards. The PPM 150 Nutrition Standards include 
nutrition criteria for three categories: Sell Most, Sell Less and Not Permitted for Sale. The 
Nutrition Standards: Nutrition Tools for Schools include an additional category to identify food 
and beverages that meet or exceed the PPM 150 Nutrition Standards and provide Maximum 
Nutritional Value. By using the Maximum Nutritional Value category, schools will be complying 
with PPM 150. 

 
6.​ CROSS REFERENCES 

Legislation 
                 Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA)  

Education Act, O.Reg.200/08: Trans Fat Standards 
Ontario Ministry of Children and Youth Services Student Nutrition Programs Nutrition Guidelines, 
2005. http://www.gov.on.ca/children 
Ontario Ministry of Education Healthy Food for Healthy Schools Act, 2008  
http://www.ontla.on.ca/web/bills/bills_detail.do?locale=en&BillID=1925  
Ontario Ministry of Education Trans Fat Standards regulation 

http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/Download?dDocName=elaws_regs_080200_e 
Ontario Food Premises Regulation 493/17 
Ontario Human Rights Code 
Ontario Ministry of Education’s Policy/Program Memorandum No. 150 School Food and  

Beverage Policy http://www.ontario.ca/healthyschools 
Sabrina’s Law, An Act to Protect Anaphylactic Pupils 2005  

http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/anaphylaxis.html 
 

YCDSB Policies 
YCDSB Policy 201 Healthy Schools 
YCDSB Policy 201B Healthy Schools: Physical Activity 
 YCDSB Policy 209 Protection of Students with Anaphylaxis  
YCDSB Policy 206 Supporting Students with Prevalent Medical Conditions  

   (Anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, and/or Epilepsy) in Schools 
YCDSB Policy 603A School Fundraising 
YCDSB Healthy Schools Resource Package – www.ycdsb.ca 
Ministry/HPE Curriculum Healthy Schools Framework 

 

 564

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05a11
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/080200
http://www.gov.on.ca/children
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/s08002
http://www.ontla.on.ca/web/bills/bills_detail.do?locale=en&BillID=1925
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/Download?dDocName=elaws_regs_080200_e
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
http://www.ontario.ca/healthyschools
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05s07
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/anaphylaxis.html
http://www.ycdsb.ca
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B35Z-XoM8hBQZUl2bzEwQWFHeVV2LUdySnEzT3N1aTExQzhv/view?resourcekey=0-y9eS5A3-9jnhEiheQhJNCA


 

Resources 
Institute for Catholic Education Resource Curriculum Links Between the Ontario Curriculum, 

Grades 1-8 Health and Physical Education and the Fully Alive Program, 
Ontario 

Curriculum for Classroom Management Strategies and Other Catholic Education Resources  
Ontario Society of Nutrition Professionals in Public Health, October 2010  
Ministry of Education Foundations for a Healthy School: A Companion Resource to the  

K–12 School Effectiveness Framework 
York Region Public Health Food Safety in Schools 

 
 

7.​ RELATED FORMS 
 

Admin. 120 Elementary Letter of Compliance  
Admin. 121 Secondary Letter of Compliance  

 
 
 
Approval by Board​ June 21, 2022 

 

                                                          Date 

Effective Date​ June 22, 2022 
 

                                                         Date 

Revision Dates​ June 21, 2022 
 

                                                         Date 

Review Date​ June 2026 
 

                                                         Date 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 665

https://draftohsc.wordpress.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/foundations-for-a-healthy-school-2014.pdf
https://draftohsc.wordpress.com/wp-content/uploads/2011/11/foundations-for-a-healthy-school-2014.pdf
https://www.york.ca/health/food-safety/food-safety-schools


 

ADMIN 120 
Revised Dec 2025 

​ ​  
 

 
Dear Lunch Caterer for Elementary Schools: 

 
 

The York Catholic District School Board is committed to promoting healthy schools for our 
staff and students. As part of this commitment, to healthy eating, we ask that you to review 
and understand follow the requirements of outlined in the Ontario Ministry of Education’s 
Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 150: School Food and Beverage Policy. (PPM 150) 
found on the web at http://www.ontario.ca/healthyschools. We are recommending that our 
schools sell food and beverages that provide Maximum Nutritional Value1 (e.g. vegetables, 
fruit, whole grain bread, lean meats) in addition to meeting the Sell Most criteria of PPM 
150. 

Caterers providing food and beverages to our schools are required to meet the following: 
 

●​ All food and beverages must be prepared, served, and stored in accordance with the  
Ontario Regulation 493/17 Food Premises Regulation 493/17 as amended under the 
Health Protection and Promotion Act 

●​ At least 80% of the all food items offered for sale must fall under is from the Sell Most 
category, as defined in PPM 150 or Maximum Nutritional Value categories (e.g. fruit, 
vegetables, whole grain products, yogurt)  

●​ No more than 20% of the all food items offered for sale may fall under is from the Sell Less 
category, as defined in PPM 150 (e.g. higher fat and sodium products) 

●​ No food is from the Not Permitted for Sale category as defined by PPM 150, may be 
offered 

●​ All beverages are must comply with the nutrition standards outlined in PPM 150 from the 
Sell Most or Maximum Nutritional Value categories (e.g. 250 ml container size only, 100% 
juice, low-fat milk) 

For further assistance with complying to the policy, you may choose to have your menu reviewed 
by a Registered Dietitian. To find a dietitian visit the Dietitians of Canada website at: 
http://www.dietitians.ca/ and click on Find a Dietitian. For specific policy questions, call Eat Right 
Ontario at 1-877-510-5102. For further nutrition support, please call York Region Community and 
Health Services at 1-800-361-5653. 

Principals will require a A completed copy of the attached “Elementary School Letter of 
Compliance” is required to ensure that their lunch caterers comply compliance with this new policy 
PPM 150. This letter will be stored in the school office and the completion of the form is required  
and must be completed annually. 

 
We look forward to working with you and thank you for your commitment to supporting healthy 

schools. Sincerely, 

​         (Principal Name)​​  
John De Faveri​ Elizabeth Crowe 
Director of Education​ Chair of the Board 

 

 
1 Criteria for food and beverages with Maximum Nutritional Value that meet or exceed P/PM 150 can be 
found in the Nutrition Tools for Schools© Nutrition Standards - www.york.ca/nutrition. 

 766

https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/policy.html
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
http://www.dietitians.ca/
http://www.york.ca/nutrition


 

 
 

        ADMIN 120 
Revised Dec 2025 

Elementary School Letter of Compliance 
 

To be completed annually by Lunch Caterers in York Catholic District School Board schools. 
 

Lunch Caterer’s Business Name(s) (Please print): 

Lunch Caterer Contact Name: 

Address: 

Phone number(s): 

Business Number: 

Date of Inspection by York Region Public Health (YRPH): 

Copy of Food Handler Certificate provided 
 

I, the above named caterer(s) have read and understood the requirements of set out in the 
Ontario Ministry of Education’s Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 150: School Food and 
Beverage Policy (PPM150). 

 
I will ensure that any food and beverages provided for sale in schools will meet the following 
requirements of comply with PPM 150, including: 

Please check: 
□​ All food and beverages are prepared, served, and stored in accordance with the Ontario 

Regulation 493/17 Food Premises Regulation 493/17 as amended under the Health 
Protection and Promotion Act 

□​ At least 80% of the food provided is from the Sell Most category or Maximum Nutritional 
Value categories (e.g. fruit, vegetables, whole grain products, yogurt) 

□​ No more than 20% of food is from the Sell Less category (e.g. higher fat and sodium products) 
□​ No food is from the Not Permitted for Sale category 
□​ All beverages are from the Sell Most category or Maximum Nutritional Value categories 

(e.g. water, 100% juice, low-fat milk) 

Please ensure and check off the following: 
□​ Peanut/Nut-safe 
□​ Meets the Trans Fat Standard 

 
​  If a Registered Dietitian has assessed your menu, please attach relevant documentation. 

 

Lunch Caterer Signature:​ Date: 

 

 867

https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493


 

ADMIN 121 
Revised Dec 2025 

 

 
Dear Lunch Caterer for Secondary Schools: 

 
 

The York Catholic District School Board is committed to promoting healthy schools for our 
staff and students. As part of this commitment, to healthy eating, we ask that you to review 
and understand follow the requirements of outlined in the Ontario Ministry of Education’s 
Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 150: School Food and Beverage Policy. (PPM 150) 
found on the web at http://www.ontario.ca/healthyschools. We are recommending that our 
schools sell food and beverages that provide Maximum Nutritional Value1 (e.g. vegetables, 
fruit, whole grain bread, lean meats) in addition to meeting the Sell Most criteria of PPM 
150. 

Caterers providing food and beverages to our schools are required to meet the following: 
 

●​ All food and beverages must be prepared, served, and stored in accordance with the  
Ontario Regulation 493/17 Food Premises Regulation 493/17 as amended under the 
Health Protection and Promotion Act 

●​ At least 80% of the all food items offered for sale must fall under is from the Sell Most 
category, as defined in PPM 150 or Maximum Nutritional Value categories (e.g. fruit, 
vegetables, whole grain products, yogurt)  

●​ No more than 20% of the all food items offered for sale may fall under is from the Sell Less 
category, as defined in PPM 150 (e.g. higher fat and sodium products) 

●​ No food is from the Not Permitted for Sale category as defined by PPM 150, may be 
offered 

●​ All beverages are must comply with the nutrition standards outlined in PPM 150 from the 
Sell Most or Maximum Nutritional Value categories (e.g. 250 ml container size only, 100% 
juice, low-fat milk) 

For further assistance with complying to the policy, you may choose to have your menu reviewed 
by a Registered Dietitian. To find a dietitian visit the Dietitians of Canada website at: 
http://www.dietitians.ca/ and click on Find a Dietitian. For specific policy questions, call Eat Right 
Ontario at 1-877-510-5102. For further nutrition support, please call York Region Community and 
Health Services at 1-800-361-5653. 

Principals will require a A completed copy of the attached “Secondary School Letter of 
Compliance” is required to ensure that their lunch caterers comply compliance with this new policy 
PPM 150. This letter will be stored in the school office and the completion of the form is required  
and must be completed annually. 

 
We look forward to working with you and thank you for your commitment to supporting healthy 

schools. Sincerely, 

​         (Principal Name)​​  
John De Faveri​ Elizabeth Crowe 
Director of Education​ Chair of the Board 

 

 
1 Criteria for food and beverages with Maximum Nutritional Value that meet or exceed P/PM 150 can be 
found in the Nutrition Tools for Schools© Nutrition Standards - www.york.ca/nutrition. 

 968

https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/policy.html
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
http://www.dietitians.ca/
http://www.york.ca/nutrition


 

 

 
ADMIN 121 

Revised Dec 2025 

Secondary School Letter of Compliance 
To be completed annually by Lunch Caterers in York Catholic District School Board schools 

 

Lunch Caterer’s Business Name(s) (Please print): 

Lunch Caterer Contact Name; 

Address: 

Phone number(s): 

Business Number: 

Date of Inspection by York Region Public Health (YRPH): 

Copy of Food Handler Certificate provided 

I, the above named caterer(s) have read and understood the requirements of set out in the 
Ontario Ministry of Education’s Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 150: School Food and 
Beverage Policy (PPM150). 

 
I will ensure that any food and beverages provided for sale in schools will meet the following 
requirements of comply with PPM 150, including: 

Please check: 
□​ All food and beverages are prepared, served, and stored in accordance with the Ontario 

Regulation 493/17 Food Premises Regulation 493/17 as amended under the Health 
Protection and Promotion Act 

□​ At least 80% of the food provided is from the Sell Most category or Maximum Nutritional 
Value categories (e.g. fruit, vegetables, whole grain products, yogurt) 

□​ No more than 20% of food is from the Sell Less category (e.g. higher fat and sodium products) 
□​ No food is from the Not Permitted for Sale category 
□​ All beverages are from the Sell Most category or Maximum Nutritional Value categories 

(e.g. water, 100% juice, low-fat milk) 

Please ensure and check off the following: 
□​ Peanut/nut-safe 
□​ Meets the Trans Fat Standards 

​  If a Registered Dietitian assessed your menu, please attach relevant documentation. 
 

Lunch Caterer Signature:​ Date: 

 

 1069

https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-150
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/170493


YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
BOARD POLICY 

Policy Section 
Students 

Policy Number 
201B 

Former Policy # Page 
1 of 5 

Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 

June 21, 2011 March 5th, 2013 
June 20, 2017 

November 28, 2017 
June 21, 2022 

POLICY TITLE: ​ HEALTHY SCHOOLS - PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 

SECTION A 

1. PURPOSE

The YCDSB York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) recognizes that education is
about the whole child and that physically active students are better prepared to learn. By
promoting healthy physical activity through its practices, programs and curriculum, the York
Catholic District School Board supports Ministry Policy/Program Provincial Policy
Memorandum (PPM) 138: Daily Physical Activity in Elementary Schools, Grades 1-8 and
provides a consistent message regarding physical activity to all staff, students and school
volunteers. By creating a healthy physically active environment, schools will be supporting a
Christ-centred learning philosophy, ensuring that all students, regardless of ability, have
equitable opportunities to participate and benefit from physical activity.

2. OBJECTIVE

It is the policy of the York Catholic District School Board to promote and sustain healthy
physically active environments which will help students optimize their learning potential. All
schools will develop strategies to support these goals through their Healthy School
Committee in alignment with the Board’s Healthy Schools Framework. Ontario Health and
Physical Education Curriculum, the Ministry of Education’s Foundations for a Healthy School
resource, as well as all relevant Ministry of Education directives.

3. PARAMETERS

3.1​ All elementary Schools in the York Catholic DSB District School Board shall comply
with the Ontario Ministry of Education’s Daily Physical Activity Policy Act. 
Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 138: Daily Physical Activity in Elementary 
Schools, Grades 1-8. 

3.2​ All Principals, in consultation with staff, and the Catholic School Council, students and 
the local Healthy Schools Committee, shall be responsible for implementing and 
monitoring this policy and developing local strategies that align with the Foundations 
for a Healthy School resource Board’s Healthy Schools Framework. 

170



 

3.3​ Daily physical activity shall be incorporated into the instructional day, with all students 
provided in a variety of ways. For instance, integrating physical activity across 
various curriculum areas in individual blocks of five, ten, or fifteen minutes of 
moderate to vigorous activity would be an effective way of meeting the total minimum 
daily requirement of twenty minutes, and also of creating a culture of physical activity 
in the school. Twenty minutes or more of moderate to vigorous physical activity 
during a scheduled health and physical education class would also meet the daily 
physical activity requirement. Since physical activity is only one component of a 
comprehensive health and physical education program, there will be days when a 
health and physical education class does not include at least twenty minutes of 
moderate to vigorous physical activity. On these days and on days when no health 
and physical education class is scheduled, other with opportunities for to 
accumulating accumulate at least twenty minutes of moderate to vigorous physical 
activity. during the instructional day shall be provided. 

3.4​ In elementary schools, all Students in K-8, will receive physical activity education via 
the Active Living and Movement Competence Strands from of the Ontario Health and 
Physical Education Curriculum (Grades 1-8), and support will also be available for K-8 
through the Healthy Living Strand. Ontario Health and Physical Education Association 
(OPHEA). 

 
3.5​ In secondary schools, diverse forms of physical health education courses (e.g. dance, 

yoga, weight training) will be provided where numbers warrant. A variety of creative 
options that encourage students to participate, develop confidence and skill building 
will be considered. 

3.6​ In secondary schools, all students will receive physical activity education via the Active 
Living Component from the Ontario Health and Physical Education Curriculum 
(Grades 9-12), Healthy Living Strand. Ontario Health and Physical Education 
Association (OPHEA) support will also be available for Grades 9-12. 

 
3.7​ Secondary School Administration will work with their School Councils to develop 

strategies that promote student physical activity. 

3.8​ Intramural sports shall be encouraged in schools wherever scheduling is possible. 

3.9​ Integration of Physical Activity Education for Students: In elementary and 
secondary schools, physical activity should be incorporated into appropriate areas of 
the curriculum (e.g., drama, dance) to help develop a healthier attitude and a focus on 
lifetime physical activities that youth can see themselves doing after graduation.  

3.10​ Staff Training on Physical Activity: All staff will be encouraged to participate in 
regular physical activity training sessions. The YCDSB will provide opportunities for 
professional development and encourage staff to have adequate physical activity 
knowledge (e.g., workshops, Health & Physical Education website, Curriculum 
conference, subject council meetings, athletic association, current curriculum supports 
and resources). 

 
3.11​ Physical Activity Education and Religious Education Programs: Physical Activity 

should also be integrated with religious education teachings, to affirm our belief that we 
are called to educate the whole person as a physical, spiritual and intellectual being. 

 
 
 

 271

http://www.ophea.net/
http://www.ophea.net/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/curriculum/secondary/health9to12.pdf
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/curriculum/secondary/health9to12.pdf


 

3.12​ Administration will work with school board personnel to plan school grounds which 
provide opportunities that encourage physical and accessible activity. 

 
3.13​ Planning for walkers and bikers within the safe arrival area must be considered to 

encourage safe walking routes and bike parking. 
 

3.14​ Discipline: Daily Physical Activity/Physical Education class/intramurals/sport teams 
will not be withheld as discipline for individuals or a class. Teachers or staff supervising 
physical activity may utilize a time out or an alternative activity if a student's behavior is 
creating a safety issue within the context of the supervised activity. 

 
3.15​ Community Partnerships: Every effort will be made to promote strategies to involve 

students, families, parish and the community (e.g., Institute for Catholic Education, 
York Region Public Health Community and Health Services, Ontario Health and 
Physical Education Association) in physical activity education, and promote and 
maintain a healthy physical activity environment. 

 
 
4.​ RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1​ Director of Education 
4.1.1​ To oversee compliance with the Healthy Schools – Physical Activity policy. 

4.2​ Superintendent of Education overseeing Healthy Schools 
4.2.1​ To oversee the Board’s processes for Healthy Schools - Physical Activity. 
4.2.2​ To support and act as a resource to the Health and Physical Education 

Consultant. 

4.3​ Superintendents of Education 
4.3.1​ To oversee the Board’s processes for Healthy Schools - Physical Activity in 

alignment with the Foundations for a Healthy School resource and PPM 138. 
4.3.2​ To assist the school in promoting and supporting physical activity for students. 
4.3.3​ To share successful practices and develop future directions. 

4.4​ Principals and Vice-principals 
4.4.1​ To support school participation in promoting physical activity through both 

words and actions. 
4.4.2​ To provide leadership and learning opportunities to teachers, students, staff, 

parents, school councils and community members to implement and sustain 
healthy physical activity in school. 

4.4.3​ To encourage active travel to school, such as walking or cycling, and to ensure 
equity considerations are embedded in planning by providing safe routes, 
accessible pathways for students with mobility needs, and designated 
bike-parking areas. 

4.4.4​ To work with the Healthy School Committee to provide information on physical 
activity. 

4.5​ School Staff 
4.5.1​ To provide opportunities for students to increase their knowledge, skills, and 

attitudes with regards to physical activity. 
4.5.2​ To integrate healthy physical activity into daily practices. 
4.5.3​ To model healthy behaviours. 

 

 372



 

4.6​ School Councils 
4.6.1​ To support school participation efforts in promoting and supporting healthy 

physical activity. 

4.7​ Students, Parents, Community Members 
4.7.1​ To take opportunities to acquire and apply knowledge and skills that develop 

and sustain positive healthy physical activity in their home environments and 
school communities. 

 
5.​ DEFINITIONS 

 
5.1​ Active Tools for Schools (ATS) 

A free resource developed by YR Public Health to support elementary schools in 
creating a healthy, active environment by using the Comprehensive School Health 
approach (Five Foundations for a Healthy School). ATS was developed to gather, 
organize and describe programs and resources that support Healthy Schools. There are 
nine Essential Elements for Active Schools: enhancing DPA; active fundraisers; active 
celebrations and rewards; positive staff role modeling and reinforcement; physical 
curriculum in the curriculum; active opportunities beyond the classroom; active school 
travel, safety, equipment and space; supportive guidelines and policies. 

5.2​ Daily Physical Activity (PPM) 138 
The Ontario Ministry of Education released a policy that stated that every elementary 
student will take part in a minimum of 20 minutes of moderate to vigorous daily 
physical activity as part of the government’s Healthy Schools Program. 

 
6.​ CROSS REFERENCES 

Legislation 
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA)  

​ Policy/Program Memorandum (PPM) 138: Daily Physical Activity in Elementary Schools,  
​ ​   Grades 1-8.  

Ministry of Education Policy/Program Memorandum No. 138 
Ontario Human Rights Code 
 
YCDSB Policies 
YCDSB Policy 201 Healthy Schools  
YCDSB Policy 201A Healthy Schools: Eating & Nutrition 
YCDSB Policy 603A School Fundraising 
 
Resources 
Canadian 24-Hour Movement Guidelines for Children and Youth (ages 5-17 years) 
The Public Health Agency of Canada, ParticipACTION and the Canadian Society for Exercise 

Physiology (CSEP) developed new physical activity guidelines 
The Canadian Society for Exercise Physiology (CSEP) released the Canadian Sedentary 
​ Behaviour Guidelines for Children and Youth. 
The Ontario Curriculum, Grades 9 and 10; 11 and 12, Health and Physical Education, 1999 
Ontario Health and Physical and Health Education Association for Educators K-12. 
York Region Public Health, Active Tools Physical Activity for Schools 
 
 
 
 

 473

https://www.york.ca/health/healthy-schools/physical-activity-schools
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/dpa.html
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05a11
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-138
https://www.ontario.ca/document/education-ontario-policy-and-program-direction/policyprogram-memorandum-138
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/healthyschools/dpa.html
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://csepguidelines.ca/guidelines/children-youth/
https://csep.ca/2016/07/18/canadian-24-hour-movement-guidelines-for-children-and-youth-an-integration-of-physical-activity-sedentary-behaviour-and-sleep/
https://csep.ca/2016/07/18/canadian-24-hour-movement-guidelines-for-children-and-youth-an-integration-of-physical-activity-sedentary-behaviour-and-sleep/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/curriculum/secondary/health.html
http://www.ophea.net/
https://www.york.ca/health/healthy-schools/physical-activity-schools


 

 
 

Approval by Board​ June 21, 2022 
 

Date 

Effective Date​ June 22, 2022 
 

Date 

Revision Dates​ June 21, 2022 
 

Date 

Review Date​ June 2026 
 

Date 

 574



YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
BOARD POLICY 

Policy Section Policy Number 
Facilities 701 

Former Policy # 
       611 

Page 
1 of 10 

Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 

September 25, 2001 April 6th, 2010 
October 29, 2013 

September 26, 2017 
  January 31, 2023 

POLICY TITLE:​ ACCESS TO SCHOOL BOARD PREMISES (“the Premises”) 
(TRESPASS TO PROPERTY) 

SECTION A 

1. PURPOSE

The York Catholic District School Board encourages and welcomes students, staff, parents,
guardians, and other individuals from the community to its premises for purposes sanctioned
by the Board. While present, all persons shall respect the Vision of the Board and adhere to
those policies and behaviours that support a safe and secure environment. This policy and
related Acts and Regulations, including the Education Act, the Trespass to Property Act, the
Ontario Human Rights Code and the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA),
2005 provide direction to those responsible for maintaining safe and secure environments.

2. OBJECTIVE

It is the policy of the York Catholic District School Board to provide a safe and secure,
inclusive, and accessible workplace and learning environment by governing access to school
and Board premises, and by responding to unauthorized visitors in accordance with relevant
legislation and Board policy.

3. PARAMETRES PARAMETERS

3.1​ This policy shall apply to all persons accessing the premises under the jurisdiction of the
York Catholic District School Board which includes but is not limited to: a school building; 
a facility of the Board; and/or an alternative setting where education or an educational 
activity is occurring. 

3.2​ The parameters for access to school board premises are set out in the Ontario 
Regulation 474/00, Access to School Premises, under the Education Act. Regulation 
474/00 provides the Principal and Vice-Principal control over person(s) entering onto 
school property. The Trespass to Property Act, R.S.O. 1990 shall assist the Principal and 
Vice-Principal should they deem it necessary to deny access to school premises to a 
person(s). 

175



 

 

3.3​ The Principal, Vice-Principal, or designate Catholic Education Centre (CEC) Site 
Manager shall have the authority to exercise the rights of the Board as occupier with 
respect to an individual determined to be in non-compliance with the provisions of this 
policy and independent procedures. 

 
3.4​ As per section 2(1) of the Ontario Regulation 474/00, Access to School Premises, the 

following person(s) are permitted to be on school premises: 
(i)​ A person enrolled as a student in the school; 
(ii)​ A parent or guardian of a student in the school; 
(iii)​ A person employed or retained by the board; 
(iv)​ A person who is otherwise on premises for a lawful purpose; 
(v)​ A person who is invited by school official(s) to attend an event, a class or 

meeting on school premises providing the person is on the premises for that 
purpose; 

(vi)​ A person who is invited onto school premises for a particular purpose by the 
Principal, a Vice-Principal or another person authorized by the Board to do so is 
permitted to be on school premises for that purpose; 

(vii)​ A trustee of the board; 
(viii)​ A member of the clergy for the Roman Catholic Church who has pastoral charge 

of the area in which the school is situated. 

3.5​ Schools shall require the wearing of individual visitor/name badges on the premises, with 
the exception of largely attended school events. 

3.6​ Schools shall require that all parents, guardians, and visitors (including former staff and 
students), and permit holders abide by the parameters outlined within this policy. 

 
3.7​ Person(s) outlined in parameter 3.4 will have access to school board premises when the 

premises are being used for a purpose authorized by the Board. At the start of each 
school year the Principal and/or CEC Site Manager will: 

3.7.1​Ensure that they have entry and exit plans that are understood by all members 
of the school community staff and are reviewed annually; 

3.7.2​Ensure that Elementary and secondary the schools as well as other board sites 
or the CEC shall establishes, reviews, and communicates which doors are 
open, locked, and to be used by whom, during specified times; 

3.7.3​Ensure that proper signage, in compliance with the Accessibility for Ontarians 
with Disabilities Act (AODA), is in place and visible, instructing all visitors to sign 
in at the school’s main office or CEC reception area. 

 
3.8​ Parents/Guardians will have access to their child(ren) during the school day upon 

communicating their request to the school’s administration via the school’s main office 
and only in an area designated by the Principal. 
 

3.9​ Under section 3 of the Ontario Regulation 474/00 a person is not permitted to remain on 
school premises: 

3.9.1​If their presence is detrimental to the safety or well-being of a person on the 
premises. It is at the discretion of the Principal, Vice-Principal or another person 
authorized by the board to make such a determination. 

3.9.2​If a policy or procedure of the Board requires the person to report their presence 
on school premises in a specified manner and the person(s) fails to do so. 

 
3.10​ Parameter 3.9 does not apply to a student enrolled in the school or to a student 

attending a program for suspended and expelled students that is located on school 
 276



 

premises [Ontario Regulation 474/00, s. 3(3)]. 
 

3.11​ In the event of an incident occurring involving a person’s access to a school board 
premise, the Principal and/or CEC Site Managers will,: 

3.11.1​ Investigate to determine what occurred during the incident; 
3.11.2​ Where applicable, consult with their Superintendent of Education; 
3.11.3​ Determine if the incident requires a follow up with the person(s) involved,  

   and communicate with that person(s) accordingly (i.e. meeting, warning    
   letter); 

3.11.4​ Inform York Regional Police if necessary. 

3.12​ Failure of an individual or individuals to comply with this policy and related procedures, 
subsequent to receiving a verbal or written warning by a school official and copied to 
York Regional Police, may result in charges under the Trespass to Property Act or the 
Access to Schools Regulation. 

 
4.​ RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1​ Director of Education  
4.1.1​ To oversee compliance with the Access to School and Board Premises policy 

and guidelines in cooperation with senior administration. 
 

4.2​ Senior Administration 
4.2.1​ To support the implementation and compliance with policies and related 

guidelines and procedures. 
4.2.2​ To ensure that appropriate procedures are in place with respect to issuing 

permits for Community Use of School Facilities. 
4.2.3​ To ensure that appropriate and available signage is available for schools. 
4.2.4​ To manage the Video/Intercom access system service maintenance contract. 
4.2.5​ To ensure central control and oversee emergency backup of the proximity 

access card control system. 
 

4.3​ Principal 
4.3.1​ To ensure the implementation and management of this policy and procedures at 

the school level. 
4.3.2​ To refuse admittance to the school or classroom a person whose presence in 

the school or classroom would, in the Principal’s judgment, be detrimental to the 
physical or mental well-being of the students. 

4.3.3​ To review and communicate the guidelines regarding school access to the staff, 
students, Catholic School Council and parent community annually. 

4.3.4​ To ensure that all entrances to school premises are clearly posted with 
appropriate signage. 

4.3.5​ To maintain and situate for easy reference an up-to-date Emergency 
Preparedness Plan. 

 

4.4​ School Staff 
4.4.1​ To support the school administration in ensuring a safe and secure working and 

learning environment. 
4.4.2​ To report suspicious or unauthorized persons to the Principal / designate / 

supervisor as soon as possible. 
4.4.3​ To ensure visibility throughout the school and the school grounds. 
4.4.4​ To assist in determining the reason for a person’s presence on school premises 

by identifying him/herself themselves in a professional manner and directing the 
person to the school office in order to register their presence. 

 377



 

 

4.5​ Parent(s)/Guardian(s)/Visitors 
4.5.1​ To comply with Board policies, guidelines and procedures as they relate to 

accessing school and Board premises. 
4.5.2​ Visitors are required tTo restrict activities to the location(s) approved by the 

Principal or designate. 

4.6​ Permit Holders 
4.6.1​ Permit Holders are required to restrict activities to the location(s) approved by 

the Principal or designate as indicated on the permit. 
 
 

5.​ DEFINITIONS 
5.1​ School and Board Premises 

Includes, but is not limited to, a school building, a facility of the Board, and/or an 
alternative setting where education or an educational activity is occurring. 

5.2​ Access to Schools/School Property 
This means 24 hours per day, seven days a week. 

 
6.​ CROSS REFERENCES 

 
Legislation 

   Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA)  
Education Act Section 305  
Ontario Human Rights Code 
Ontario Regulation 474/00 - Access to School Premises  
Provincial Offences Act 
Trespass to Property Act 
 
YCDSB Policies 
YCDSB Policy 202 Safe Schools - (Student Discipline) & Guidelines 
YCDSB Policy 117 Code of Conduct 
YCDSB Policy 303 School Organized and Continuing Education Excursions  
YCDSB Policy 616 Community Use of Schools 
YCDSB Policy 617 Code of Conduct 
YCDSB Policy 708 Outdoor Activity Equipment 
 
YCDSB Procedures 
YCDSB Procedure 202 Safe Schools – Student Discipline 
YCDSB Procedure 303 School Organized and Continuing Education Excursions 
YCDSB Procedure 616 Community Use of Schools 
YCDSB Procedure 701 Elementary Administrative Locked Door Protocol 
YCDSB Procedure 708 Outdoor Activity Equipment 
YCDSB Independent Procedure: Guidelines for Schools re: Elections Guidelines for schools, 
Principals and Catholic School Councils during Municipal, Provincial and Federal Elections 
York Region Police & School Boards Protocol 

 

 

 

 478

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/05a11
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/000474
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90p33
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90t21


 

 

 
Approval by Board January 31, 2023 
 Date 

Effective Date February 1, 2023 
 Date 

Revision Date(s) January 31, 2023 
 Date 

Review Date January 2027 
 Date 

 

 579



 

 

POLICY TITLE:​ ACCESS TO SCHOOL BOARD PREMISES (“the Premises”) 

SECTION B: GUIDELINES 

The following guidelines are in line with the The Trespass to Property Act, R.S.O. and Ontario 
Regulation 474 /00 - Access to School Premises 

 
1.​ Persons authorized to be on Board premises must sign in/out, as specified in this policy 

and related procedures; provide photo identification, if requested; and wear a 
visitor/name badge, where/when required. 

 
2.​ Persons authorized to be on Board premises are not entitled to have access to all areas 

of the school or facility and shall only have access to areas as permitted by the Principal 
or designate. 

 
3.​ The Board has the right to lock the premises for safety reasons and when Board 

premises are not being used for a Board authorized purpose. 
 
4.​ Visitors, including former staff and students, are not permitted to remain on Board 

premises if the person fails to report his or her their presence in the specified manner 
outlined within this policy and related procedures. 

 
5.​ An authorized person (see parameter 3.4) is not permitted to remain on Board premises 

if his or her their presence is detrimental to the safety or well-being of a person on the 
premises, in the judgment of the Principal, Vice-Principal, designate, or another person 
authorized by the Board to make such a determination. 

 
6.​ Each school shall maintain a list of individuals who may have restricted access to the 

School and/or other Board premises as a result of a court order or who have been 
denied access through an exclusion Trespass Letter. This list is to be maintained in the 
School office and communicated, in confidence, with appropriate staff. 

 
7.​ All York Catholic District School Board buildings shall use and clearly display appropriate 

indoor signage (see Appendix A and Appendix B). The signage shall be posted at all 
entrances, on the right-hand exterior doors, on the left-hand side, where possible. 

 
8.​ All York Catholic District School buildings shall have one large outdoor sign, located at 

the main entrance to school property (see Appendix C and Appendix D). 
 
9.​ An Exclusion Trespass Letter must be used in all cases where an individual is excluded 

from the property, of exclusion, delivered to intended recipients through registered mail, 
and a copy sent to the appropriate School Superintendent and to the York Regional 
Police. 

 
 
 
 

680

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90t21
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/000474
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/000474


 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A  
Inside Elementary 

 
York Catholic District School Board 

 

                N O T I C E 
FOR THE SAFETY OF OUR SCHOOL COMMUNITY 

 
 

●​ ALL VISITORS ARE WELCOME AND MUST REPORT TO THE MAIN OFFICE 
 
 

●​ THIS IS PRIVATE PROPERTY 
 
 

●​ TRESPASSERS WILL BE PROSECUTED 
 
 

●​ VIDEO SURVEILLANCE IS IN USE 
 
 

●​ SAFE SCHOOLS POLICY IS STRICTLY ENFORCED 
 
 

●​ ALL PETS ARE PROHIBITED FROM SCHOOL PROPERTY  
(SERVICE ANIMALS EXEMPT) 

 
 

●​ SMOKING AND VAPING ARE IS PROHIBITED ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 

 

781



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix B  

Inside Secondary 

York Catholic District School Board 
 

                N O T I C E 
FOR THE SAFETY OF OUR SCHOOL COMMUNITY 

 
 
 

●​ ALL VISITORS ARE WELCOME AND MUST REPORT TO THE MAIN OFFICE 
 
 

●​ THIS IS PRIVATE PROPERTY 
 
 

●​ TRESPASSERS WILL BE PROSECUTED 
 
 

●​ VIDEO SURVEILLANCE IS IN USE 
 
 

●​ SAFE SCHOOLS POLICY IS STRICTLY ENFORCED 
 
 

●​ ALL PETS ARE PROHIBITED FROM SCHOOL PROPERTY  
(SERVICE ANIMALS EXEMPT) 

 
 

●​ SMOKING AND VAPING ARE IS PROHIBITED ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 

 

882



 

Appendix C 
  Outside Elementary 

 
 
 

 
York Catholic District School Board 

 

                N O T I C E 
FOR THE SAFETY OF OUR SCHOOL COMMUNITY 

 
 
 

●​ ALL VISITORS ARE WELCOME AND MUST REPORT TO THE MAIN OFFICE 

 
●​ VISITORS MUST USE THE INTERCOM BUZZER SYSTEM FOR ACCESS TO 

THE SCHOOL DURING SCHOOL HOURS 

 
●​ THIS IS PRIVATE PROPERTY 

 
 

●​ TRESPASSERS WILL BE PROSECUTED 
 
 

●​ VIDEO SURVEILLANCE IS IN USE 
 
 

●​ SAFE SCHOOLS POLICY IS STRICTLY ENFORCED 
 
 

●​ ALL PETS ARE PROHIBITED FROM SCHOOL PROPERTY  
      (SERVICE ANIMALS EXEMPT) 

 

●​ UNAUTHORIZED VEHICLES WILL BE TAGGED AND/OR TOWED AT 
OWNER’S EXPENSE 

 
●​ SMOKING AND VAPING ARE IS PROHIBITED ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 

 

983



 

 
 
 

Appendix D 
Outside Secondary 

 
 
 

 
York Catholic District School Board 

 

                 N O T I C E 
   FOR THE SAFETY OF OUR SCHOOL COMMUNITY 

 
 
 

●​ ALL VISITORS ARE WELCOME AND MUST REPORT TO THE MAIN OFFICE 
 

●​ THIS IS PRIVATE PROPERTY 
 
 

●​ TRESPASSERS WILL BE PROSECUTED 
 
 

●​ VIDEO SURVEILLANCE IS IN USE 
 
 

●​ SAFE SCHOOLS POLICY IS STRICTLY ENFORCED 
 
 

●​ ALL PETS ARE PROHIBITED FROM SCHOOL PROPERTY  
                 (SERVICE ANIMALS EXEMPT) 

 

●​ UNAUTHORIZED VEHICLES WILL BE TAGGED AND/OR TOWED AT 
OWNER’S EXPENSE 

 
●​ SMOKING AND VAPING ARE IS PROHIBITED ON SCHOOL PROPERTY 

 

 1084



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCEDURES: 
 
 

ELEMENTARY ADMINISTRATIVE 
LOCKED DOOR 

PROTOCOL 
 
 

 
Addendum to Policy 701: Access to School and Board Premises 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Effective: January 31, 2023 XX 

 
185



VIDEO / INTERCOM ACCESS SYSTEM - LOCKED DOORS PROTOCOLS 

Responsibility:​ Superintendent of Education: Safe and Caring 
Schools Superintendent of Facilities 

PURPOSE: 
This protocol is designed in conjunction with the YCDSB Policy 701 Access to School 
Premises Policy 701. This protocol outlines the administration, operation, and maintenance 
of the Video / Intercom access, access control systems and the locked perimeter door 
systems within all elementary school facilities of the York Catholic District School Board. It 
supports a safe, inclusive, and welcoming environment consistent with Board policies and 
applicable legislation, including the Education Act, the Trespass to Property Act, the Ontario 
Human Rights Code and the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), 2005. 

SYSTEM OVERVIEW: 
1. In the interest of safety and to support a welcoming learning environment for our

students and staff, the York Catholic District School Board will implement this
Safe Welcome Protocol.

2. Each elementary school main entrance will be is equipped with a Video/Intercom
access system. This system will allow school staff to identify and provide access to
visitors. In addition, schools with portables each elementary school will be is equipped
with an access control system. an electronic entry system to facilitate easy access to
the main building for students and staff. These measures and the training that will be
required will support our current safety practices for our students, staff and school
community.

3. Each All permanent employees assigned to a building staff member will be
administered a key fob which will be used to access the facility. school entrance
from the staff parking area. Principals will receive five fobs to manage access for
long term occasional staff. Schools with portables will receive one fob per portable
allowing students to access the main school building.

4. The main entrance doors of each elementary school are to be opened 30 minutes
before the morning entry bell and locked 15 minutes after the morning entry bell. All
perimeter doors are to be locked and secured during school hours.

5. After the doors are locked, All visitors to the school will only be able to gain entry via
the Video / Intercom access system. Where local school needs require an alternative,
any adjustment to this protocol shall be determined by the school principal, subject to
the approval of the school superintendent. (This also applies to before and after
School Programs.)

6. The Video/Intercom access system software will be installed in the school’s main
office and be administered and operated by the school secretaries, office support
workers, and the school Principals and Vice-Principals.

7. In the event of an inclement weather day, staff will be assigned to divisional entrances to
facilitate access to the school building.

286



 

 
 

IMPLEMENTATION PROCESS: 
 

The following process of communication should be followed: 
 

1.​ The Board will issue a letter annually through the elementary schools to inform 
each school community of the process. 

2.​ Principals will communicate the protocol with all staff and childcare operators, 
where applicable. 

3.​ Each elementary school will be required to identify their own site-specific needs and 
develop a plan to address as well as support student and staff safety while providing 
a positive “welcoming” climate. 

 
CUSTOMER SERVICE: 

 
1.​ Each school will post the signage as provided by the Board or as deemed necessary 

by the school Principal, with the approval of the school superintendent. 
2.​ All schools will post signage to welcome visitors and assist in directing them to the 

office for assistance. The following protocol is required for visitors on school premises: 
a)​ Visitors will be required to wait in the office to meet with their child or a teacher; 
b)​ Upon entering the school, all visitors must sign in at the main office; 
c)​ When a visitor needs to meet with a teacher in a location other than the 

main office, the visitor shall be issued a visitor badge; 
d)​ Should any staff member notice a visitor without a badge or identification in 

the building, the staff member shall greet the visitor, identify themselves as a 
staff member, and direct the visitor back to the office. The staff member shall 
then notify the office. 

3.​ Visitors shall be greeted promptly and in a courteous manner. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1.​ Plant Services is responsible for: 
a)​ Installation of the Two-Way Video / Intercom access and communication 

system at the school main entrance, consisting of exterior Door Station, interior 
office Master Station, electronic door release and system software. 

b)​ Training and support of the Video / Intercom access system that will use 
the Video / Intercom access system. 

c)​ Installation of proximity access card control systems in schools with portables. 
 

2.​ Facilities and Maintenance Services is responsible for: 
a)​ Managing the Video / Intercom access system service maintenance contract. 
b)​ Facility and Maintenance Services will have central control and emergency 

backup of all the proximity access card control systems (portable access 
system) for all sites. 

 
3.​ School Administrators are responsible for: 

a)​ Determining the specific needs of the school as they relate to the school 
access systems, in consultation with the school superintendent.  

 387



 

 
 

b)​ In schools with portables, coordinating a plan and protocol with the  
appropriate staff for the use and control of portable assigned fobs access 
cards in the school. 

c)​ Coordinating the access system and delegating responsibilities for the system 
to appropriate office staff, including programming cards and system operation 
schedules. 

d)​ Ensuring that school-specific adjustments to these guidelines are embedded 
in the School Safety Plan and are reviewed on an annual basis. 

e)​ Furnish Occasional Teachers/Support Staff/E.C.E.’s/Secretaries, /Custodians 
Providing long term occasional staff with an access card a fob where needed, 
to be signed out and returned to the main office at the end of the assignment 
each day. 

f)​ Maintain ongoing communication on locked door procedures with 
Vice-Principals and teachers-in-charge. 

g)​ Maintain regular communication with the school community. 
 

4.​ Office staff are responsible for: 
a)​ Welcoming visitors, providing access to the building using the Video/Intercom 

Access system, and ensuring sign-in at the main office. 
 

5.​ Custodians are responsible for: 
a)​ Following all required procedures related to the locking of doors. 
b)​ Unlocking the main entrance doors in the morning and locking them 15 minutes 

after the morning bell. 
c)​ Unlock the main entrance doors in the afternoon at the dismissal bell, and lock 

them again when the school is to be closed for the day, or on direction from the 
principal. 

 
6.​ All Staff are responsible for: 

a)​ Reinforcing with students the procedures for safe entry to the school, 
especially in schools with portables. 

b)​ Immediately reporting to the office any non-staff member in the school 
not wearing a visitor’s badge in a non-authorized area. 

c)​ Following all board and school related protocols and being vigilant in 
the monitoring and reporting of safety concerns to school 
administrators. 

 
7.​ Long Term Occasional Staff Teachers/Support Staff/E.C.E.’s are  responsible for: 

a)​ Familiarizing themselves with the school safety procedures. by reading the 
guidelines for Occasional Teachers provided by the school and taking part  
in board in-services. 

b)​ Ensuring that all swipe cards fobs in elementary schools with portables are 
returned to the office at the end of the assignment day (or following any 
alternate school protocol). 

c)​ Ensuring all keys issued at the start of the day are returned to the main office 
at the end of the day. 

 

 488



 

 
 

8.​ Parent(s)/Guardian(s)/Visitors are responsible for: 
a)​ Supporting the Board and School Safe & Welcoming Elementary 

Administrative Locked Door Protocol and to cooperate with school staff and 
administration in keeping all schools safe.  

b)​ Adhering to the Board Code of Conduct and Ontario Human Rights Code 
HREA (Human Rights Education Associates) policies by treating board staff 
with respect and courtesy. 

 
9.​ Students are responsible for: 

a)​ Following the rules regarding locked doors and to never allow anyone entry 
into the building. 

 
 

SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS: 
 

1.​ Main Entrance Doors: 
a)​ Are to be opened 30 minutes before the morning entry bell and locked 

15 minutes after the morning entry bell; 
b)​ Will remain locked during school hours. 

 
2.​ It is recognized that some activities will occur both within and outside the hours of 

an instructional day. During these times, it is up to the Principal to determine when 
doors are to be locked or unlocked. These events may include, but are not limited 
to: 
a)​ After school Book Fairs that are open to the public; 
b)​ Concerts and school events; 
c)​ Daytime Parent-Teacher interviews; 
d)​ School Masses. 

 
3.​ Schools with portables: 

a)​ Portables are considered part of the school building. 
b)​ Portable doors must be locked and secured at all times. 
c)​ An proximity access card system control door will be installed at each 

school to allow for access to the school building, i.e., emergency 
situations, washrooms, gym, library, etc. during the regular school day. 

d)​ All staff who require access to the portables will be issued an access card 
on a sign-out basis. Each staff member is responsible for his or her their 
card. 

e)​ Three access cards  One fob (each to be kept on a visible lanyard) will be 
programmed for each portable to allow students access to the main building. 
The school administration will be responsible for the distribution, monitoring 
and management of access cards fobs for each school. 

f)​ The Principal, in consultation with staff, will determine procedures for 
access by students into the school. At least one access card must remain 
in the portable with the teacher at all times. 

 
 
 
 589



 

 
4.​ Recess, Lunch and Breaks: 

a)​ For students in Grades 1-8, one exterior door to the school yard will be 
designated for school access during recess and lunch breaks. Each school 
(Principal in consultation with Staff) will develop a procedure for access to 
and monitoring of this door. 

b)​ For Kindergarten students, the Principal in consultation with Staff, will develop  
a procedure for access to and monitoring of the Kindergarten yard. 

c)​ A best practice is to have students visit washrooms prior to outdoor routine. 
 

5.​ Schools with Child Care and Before & After School Programs: 
a)​ Interior doors connecting Child Care Centres to the school building must 

be kept locked at all times. 
b)​ Where interior doors connect the Child Care Centre to the main school 

building, the Child Care operators must have a key to these connecting 
doors. 

c)​ Access for Before & After School Programs to the school will be through the 
main entrance or through an alternate door as determined by the Principal 
in consultation with the Child Care Operator. 

 
6.​ Procedures for Lockdown / Fire Alarm / Emergency Evacuations: 

In the event of a Lockdown, one member of the office staff is to release the locked 
main doors using the electronic switch found in the office safe refuge room, in 
order to allow police, fire and/ or medical personnel access to the building. At the 
end of the lockdown, the switch is to be reset to lock the main doors. 
 

 

 690



YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

BOARD POLICY 
Policy Section 

Finance 
Policy Number 

 813 
Former Policy # Page 

1 of 2 
Original Approved Date Subsequent Approval Dates 

XX 

POLICY TITLE:​ USE OF PROCEEDS OF DISPOSITION (POD) 

SECTION A 

1. PURPOSE

The York Catholic District School Board is accountable for the stewardship of the Board’s
assets including the utilization of its cash resources within statutory limitations. This policy is
made under the authority of the Education Act, and in accordance with Ontario Regulation
374/23 (Acquisition and Disposition of Real Property), Ontario Regulation 193/10 (Restricted
Purpose Revenues), and related Ministry memoranda and capital policy guidance. The
purpose of this policy is to outline the objectives and parameters for the use of Proceeds of
Disposition funds.

2. OBJECTIVE

To establish clear rules and procedures for the accounting, restriction, allocation and use of
net proceeds derived from the sale, lease, or other disposition of Board real property
(“Proceeds of Disposition” or “POD”) in a manner that complies with applicable legislation,
regulations and Ministry policies and that ensures transparency and appropriate stewardship
of public assets. To ensure that POD is targeted toward renewal priorities of the Board.

3. PARAMETERS

3.1​ POD funds are restricted revenues and shall be used for capital purposes only —
specifically for repair, renewal, replacement of building components — in accordance 
with O. Reg. 193/10 and Ministry capital policy.  

3.2​ POD generated from the sale or other disposition of a property that was used for 
administrative purposes, as of December 31, 1997, may be used for administrative site 
expenditures (purchase of real property, and additions, alterations, and repairs). 
Ministerial approval is required. 

3.3​ POD balances shall be reviewed during the budget and capital planning cycles. If 
capital programming funding is insufficient to address identified eligible projects, POD 
funds may be used to first address high-priority capital projects.  

191



 

 
 
3.4​ Expenditures shall align with the School Condition Improvement program with a 

minimum 80% of POD to target key building components and systems, with the 
remaining up to 20% addressing other locally identified renewal needs. 

 
3.5​ Use of POD for purposes outside the approved capital plan requires prior approval 

from the Minister of Education. A comprehensive business case shall demonstrate that 
the proposed use is exceptional, fully justified, and that all alternative funding sources 
and mitigation options have been explored and exhausted. It shall clearly state the 
amount requested, the remaining POD balance, and confirm alignment with Board 
strategic priorities and long-term capital and financial plans. The business case shall 
be reviewed and approved by the Board before submission to the Ministry. 

 
3.6​ Net POD shall be recorded in a dedicated reserve or deferred revenue account titled 

“Proceeds of Disposition” and shall be used only for permitted capital expenditures and 
reported in the Board’s audited financial statements. 

 
 

4.  RESPONSIBILITIES 
 4.1​ Board of Trustees 

4.1.1​ To provide oversight with respect to the Use of Proceeds of Disposition (POD)  
            policy. 
 

 4.2​ Director of Education 
4.2.1   To ensure the Use of Proceeds of Disposition (POD) policy is administered as  
           approved by the Board in accordance with applicable legislation. 

 
 4.3​ Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board 

4.3.1​ To oversee compliance with the Use of Proceeds of Disposition (POD) policy. 
 

 

5.  DEFINITIONS 
 5.1​ Administrative Proceeds of Disposition 

Administrative POD are generated through the sale of administrative buildings. 
 
 5.2​ Net Proceeds of Disposition 

Remaining POD after deducting eligible sale costs and required reimbursements to 
Education Development Charges (EDC) and/or repatriation of Ministry funds provided 
for the original purchase. 

 
 5.3    Proceeds of Disposition (POD) 

POD are generated when the Board sells school facilities or properties that have been 
declared surplus. 

 
5.  CROSS REFERENCES 
      Education Act 
      Ontario Regulation 193/10: Restricted Purpose Revenues 
      Ontario Regulation 374/23: Acquisition and Disposition of Real Property 
      Ministry of Education Memorandum 2015: B13 

 
 
 
 
 

 292

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/100193
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r23374


 

 
 
 
 

 

Approval by Board XX 
 Date 

Effective Date XX 
 Date 

Revision Dates XX 
 Date 

Review Date XX 
 Date 

393



York Catholic District School Board 
 

REPORT NO. 2026:01 of the 
CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

To:​ Board of Trustees​ December 16, 2025 
 
A public session of the Corporate Services Committee was held in the Boardroom at 320 Bloomington 
Road West and via Google Meets on Tuesday, December 9, 2025, commencing at 6:31 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: 
Committee Members:​ F. Alexander, M. Barbieri, F. Cellucci*, E. Crowe, J. DiMeo*, A. Grella*, M. Iafrate, 

T. McNicol*, A. Saggese, J. Wigston  
Administration:​ J. De Faveri, J. Sarna, C. McNeil, G. De Girolamo, N. Galatianos, K. Elgharbawy, 

R. Antunes*, M. Brosens*, J. Chiutsi*, A. Iafrate*, T. Laliberte*, S. Morrow 
Absent with Notice:​ C. Cotton, Student Trustees S. Cuesta and A. Shenouda 
Recording:​ K. Errett 
Presiding:​ J. Wigston, Committee Chair 
[*Denotes attendance via Google Meets] 
 
1)​ Election of Officers for 2026 

i)​ Trustee Wigston, Chair 
ii)​ Trustee Saggese, Vice-Chair 

2)​ Terms of Reference of the Corporate Services Committee  
THAT the Board approves the 2026 Terms of Reference for the Corporate Services Committee. 
 

3)​ ACTION ITEM(S): Nil  

4)​ BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING:   
a)​ Follow-Up Questions – Purchasing Bid Activity Report  

5)​ SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT:  Nil 

6)​ STAFF PRESENTATION:  Nil 

7)​ OUTSIDE PRESENTATION(S):  Nil 
8)​ DISCUSSION ITEMS:  Nil 

9)​ INFORMATION ITEMS: 
The Committee processed the following: 
a)​ Minutes of the October 21, 2025 meeting were approved. 
b)​ October 31, 2025 Preliminary TCH-8 Enrolments 
c)​ Implementation of Localized School Bus Cancellations 
d)​ 2024-25 YCDSB Year-End Reports 

i)​ Annual Investment Report (Year End 2024-25) 
ii)​ General School Budgets (GSB) – 2024-25 Year-End Status 
iii)​School Generated Funds (SGF) – 2024-25 Year-End Status 
iv)​ School Improvements & Minor Capital Repairs – Differentiating Board vs. School Funding 
v)​ Capital Programs and Projects  

e)​ Purchasing Bid Activity Report 
f)​ OSBIE Insurance Report: Property  

 
94



Corporate Services Committee - Public Session 
Report No. 2026:01  
December 9, 2026​ Page 2 
 
 
 
 
10)​ NOTICE(S) OF MOTION:  Nil 

11)​ FUTURE ITEMS:  Nil 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 7:12 p.m. 
On Motion:  Saggese/Grella and CARRIED  

J. Wigston, Committee Chair 

95



 

YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE 
STANDING COMMITTEE 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE  

December 9, 2025 
 

The Corporate Services Committee will support York Catholic District School Board’s Effective Use of 
Our Resources Strategic Commitments and good governance as outlined within these terms of reference.  
 
1. Purpose/Mandate: 

1.1 To review and report to the Board on all relevant accommodation management and business 
administration issues facing the Board. 

1.2 To review and provide input into the development of the accommodation management plan, 
including the Long-Term Accommodation Plan (LTAP), for elementary and secondary schools 
to be approved periodically by the Board. 

1.3 To refer to the Policy Review Committee any Board policies and procedures related to 
accommodation management and business administration issues which, through the normal 
course of business, may require amendment.  

1.4 To receive presentations related to accommodation management and business administration 
issues as directed by the Board. 

1.5 To receive and review all Ministry of Education directives and communications related to 
accommodation management and business administration issues. 

1.6 To make recommendations to the Board (as required) related to the accommodation 
management and business administration functions of the Board. 

1.7 To review any other matters as requested by the Board or senior administration related to any 
accommodation management and business administration related activities of the Board. 

 
2. Expected Outcome of the Committee’s Work: 

2.1 To ensure that the Board is apprised of the current issues of the Corporate Services 
departments, including the Finance Department, Plant & Accommodation Services, Planning & 
Operations Services and the Information Technology Department. 

 
3. Committee Membership: 

3.1 All Trustees 
 
4. Resource Personnel: 

4.1 Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board (Ex-Officio) 
4.2 Associate Director 
4.3 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 
4.4 Coordinating Manager, Planning and Operations 
4.5 Superintendent of Plant and Accommodations 
4.6 Chief Information Officer 
4.7 Superintendent of Human Resources and International Education 
4.8 Other Staff as Required 

 
5. Meeting Schedule: 

5.1 The Corporate Services Committee will meet at least four (4) times per year or as required. 
  

Trustee Membership: 
All Trustees 

 
 Chair: TBD 
 Vice Chair: TBD 

Last Revision/Approval Date: 
December 9, 2025 

96



 

 

York Catholic District School Board 
  

REPORT NO. 2026:02 
  

SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE BOARD / PRIVATE SESSION 
 

  
To: Regular Board Meeting December 16, 2025 
 

 
A private session of the Special Committee of the Whole was held at the Catholic Education Centre on 
Tuesday, December 9, 2025 starting at 5:15 pm. 
. 

 
PRESENT:   

Members: In Person:  F. Alexander, M. Barbieri, C. Cotton, E. Crowe, M. Iafrate, A. Saggese 
    J. Wigston 

 Virtual: J. DiMeo, A. Grella, T. McNicol  
  
Administration:  

In Person: J. De Faveri  
  Virtual: N/A 
   
Absent with Notice:  N/A 
 
Recording Officer:  S. Greco   
 
Presiding:   J. Wigston, Vice-Chair of the Board 
 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS:  
 
 DECLASSIFIED (Action Items for Approval): N/A 

 
CLASSIFIED:   
 
THAT the confidential items from the Private Session held on December 9, 2025, be received as 
presented. 
 

 
Adjournment:   5:41 pm 
 
 
 
 

J. Wigston, Vice-Chair of the Board 

97



  

 
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REPORT NO. 2026: 02 
 

To:  Regular Board Meeting                    December 15, 2025 
 
A meeting of the Special Education Advisory Committee was held on December 16, 2025 in a hybrid format in 
person at the CEC, 320 Bloomington Rd. W and virtually over Google meet.  
 
PRESENT:  
Committee Members: A. Grella, A. Connolly, N. Byrne, M. Iafrate, S. Leckey, 

N. Welch,  
Administration: J. Powers, E. Strano, L. Lausic, L. Cipollone 

Regrets: D. Legris, A. Carter, J. Wigston, J. Man  

Recording C. Mong 
Guests: M. McShine-Quao, Educational Researcher 

 
 
1. ACTION ITEM(S):  NIL 
  
2. CORRESPONDENCE: NIL 
   
3. PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS/INFORMATION: 

• AAC Annual Christmas Video  
• Student Census  

 
4. ASSOCIATION REPORTS:  

• LDAYS: Monthly Report and programs 
• Community Living: E-Connector 
• Easter Seals Association Update  
• York Hills Winter groups and Webinars 

  
5. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA: 

• FASD Presentation 
 
6. NEXT MEETING: January 12, 2026 
                A. GRELLA, CHAIR, SEAC 

98



York Catholic District School Board 
Catholic Education Centre, 320 Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario L4G 0M1 

Tel: 905-713-1211, 416-221-5051, 1-800-363-2711, Voice Mail Box: 17123 
Fax: 905-713-1272 ● www.ycdsb.ca 

Theresa McNicol, Trustee – East Gwillimbury/Georgina/Newmarket 
theresa.mcnicol@ycdsb.ca • Cell: 289-383-7656 

October 28, 2025 
 
 

LEGAL INVOICES 
 

 
Whereas the Board of Trustees received and paid for two legal opinions on my 

judicial review and that showed they would not be successful and 
subsequently proceeded anyways; 

 
Whereas taxpayer money was spent on these legal opinions and court proceedings 

which resulted in monies being removed from classrooms where it is 
most needed; 

 
Whereas I was required to spend over $100,000 on my own court costs to defend 

myself. 
 

 
LET IT BE RESOLVED: 
THAT a request be made to the Ministry to audit all legal costs put forward by Trustees 
in order to provide transparency to public taxpayers on how their dollars have been 
spent; 
 
THAT the legal cost audit be provided to all stakeholders; 
 
THAT the trustees who voted in favour of continuing with the judicial review, against 
the advice of legal, be required to pay the money back to the Board so these monies 
can be properly directed to classrooms. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Theresa McNicol 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Reference No. 2025:16:1028:TM 

 
 

99



York Catholic District School Board 
Catholic Education Centre, 320 Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario L4G 0M1 

Tel: 905-713-1211, 416-221-5051, 1-800-363-2711 
Fax: 905-713-1272 ● www.ycdsb.ca 

Jennifer Wigston, Trustee – Vaughan Area 4: Wards 4/5 (Thornhill/Concord) 
jennifer.wigston@ycdsb.ca • Cell: 416-835-0307 

October 21, 2025 – Revised December 16, 2025 
 

                   NOTICE OF MOTION 
 

                                                           EXPLORATION OF  
CENTRALLY DELIVERED STREAM PROGRAMMING 

 
Whereas the YCDSB recognizes the value of STREAM (Science, Technology,  
  Religion, Engineering, Arts and Math) education for students; 
 
Whereas  the YCDSB is committed to the equitable delivery of STREAM learning 

opportunities to students; 
 
Whereas  given the shared model of support for exceptional learners with special needs 

means that ensuring appropriate supports for off-site learning may inadvertently 
create barriers for some classes and/or schools to fully participate in STREAM 
education experiences; 

 
Whereas timing constraints on STREAM visits are a natural result of transportation 

scheduling limitations; 
 
Whereas  students whose schools are located farther from STREAM centres experience 

substantially longer and potentially inequitable travel times compared to their 
peers; 

 
Whereas the cost of transportation for students to attend STREAM centres is funded 

centrally. 
 
 
LET IT BE RESOLVED: 
 
THAT staff investigate whether there may be efficiencies in transitioning to centrally delivered 
STREAM programming whereby curriculum materials for the delivery of the STREAM module 
are provided to the school prior to the visit of the itinerant teacher 
 
THAT the report includes recommendations on increasing access to STREAM learning for 
exceptional students. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Jennifer Wigston 
Trustee 
 
REFERENCE NO. 2025:13:1021:JW 

100



York Catholic District School Board 
Catholic Education Centre, 320 Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario L4G 0M1 

Tel: 905-713-1211, 416-221-5051, 1-800-363-2711 
Fax: 905-713-1272 ● www.ycdsb.ca 

 

Maria Iafrate, Trustee – Richmond Hill 
maria.iafrate@ycdsb.ca • Cell: 416-726-2241 

September 26, 2023 
 

OBLIGATIONS RELATING TO PUBLIC FUNDS SPENDING OR  
OBLIGATION TO PROTECT PUBLIC FUNDS 

  
Whereas the York Catholic District School Board (YCDSB) Trustees approve all  
  Board Policies, which must be followed by all staff and Trustees unless  
  exemptions are granted by motions of the Board, for limited times (as per  
  the Board Policy 101 Meta Policy: Policy Management and Governance); 
 
Whereas Trustees are elected to safeguard the public purse, and ensure that tax  
  dollars are spent in accordance with all CRA requirements and Board  
  policies; 
 
Whereas Trustees’ Oath of Office and Code of Conduct require Trustees to conduct  
  themselves in such a way as to instill public confidence in the system, and  
  not personally benefit from the position of a Trustee; 
 
Whereas  the YCDSB Policy 111 Trustee Services and Expenditures uses the TRIP  
  Google Program for travel reimbursement for all staff, including Trustees, and 
  Parameter 3, Section 3:11 states, “Trustee expenses for travel/meals will be 
  reimbursed according to the Travel, Meals and Expense Reimbursement  
  Policy”. 

 
Whereas  the TRIP Program uses the quickest route to calculate distance travelled, 
 which is in keeping with the Board’s practice, prior to the TRIP Program 
 implementation; 
 
Whereas staff has been requested to manually calculate mileage for some Trustees  not 
 using the most direct quick distance, contrary to Policy 111 Trustee 
 Services and Expenditures without any exemption motion by the Board of 
 Trustees, 
 
Whereas Policy 111 Trustee Services and Expenditures has been reviewed several  times 
 over the years, and most recently March 28, 2023, and no indication was ever 
 provided to Trustees that exemptions were being granted to select Trustees, 
 
 
 
 
 

101



LET IT BE RESOLVED 
 
THAT the practice of calculating mileage using any method other than the TRIP program stop 
immediately; 
 
THAT a report is brought to the Board of Trustees at its October 2023 Board meeting to 
include the following: 
  

· Background on the TRIP program, including its implementation date and the process 
used before its implementation; 

· A list of all Trustees that have been using a process other than the TRIP, for mileage 
reimbursement, and how long this alternate mileage calculation has been used for those 
Trustees in question;   

· A detailed summary of all reimbursements made to Trustees using “an alternate 
mileage calculation process” other than TRIP and how long this alternate process has 
been used; 

· A summary of the calculation of how much the mileage reimbursement would have 
been had Policy 111 been followed and the TRIP program calculation been used; 

· An explanation of the process used when staff are asked to deviate from any Board 
policy for the payment of expenses of any sort for staff or Trustees. 

  
THAT all monies in excess of the monies that would have been received by Trustees had they 
used the TRIP process be immediately reimbursed to ensure public confidence in the process is 
restored. 
  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
Maria Iafrate 
Trustee, Richmond Hill 
 
 
 
 
Ref:  2024:04:0916:MI 
 
 

102



York Catholic District School Board 
Catholic Education Centre, 320 Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario L4G 0M1 

Tel: 905-713-1211, 416-221-5051, 1-800-363-2711 
Fax: 905-713-1272 ● www.ycdsb.ca 

 

 

November 19, 2024 
 
 

AUDIT OF YCDSB PURCHASING CREDIT CARDS (PCARDS) 
 
 
Whereas the York Catholic District School Board is in a deficit and controls need to be 
  in place to ensure that spending is focused on the classroom while at the  
  same time getting the best value for money; 
 
Whereas spending of Trustees and the Senior Team is being reviewed by RIAT,  
  including the use of PCards; 
 
Whereas  transparency and accountability is of paramount importance and an external 
  review of all remaining PCards in the system would help to ensure proper  
  usage and provide additional systemic recommendations for improvement, 
  including the enforcement of  spending limits. 
 
 
LET IT BE RESOLVED 
 
THAT an outside accounting firm be hired to perform a full audit of PCards not included in the 
RIAT audit, including a review of any controls currently in place; 
 
THAT the review include recommendations for any changes in policy and/or procedure 
needed to ensure transparency, accountability and compliance; 
 
THAT the review include a recommendation on whether or not the number of PCards in the 
system should be reduced; 
 
THAT once the recommendations are implemented, training for proper usage of PCards take 
place once a year with all holders. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
Elizabeth Crowe      Maria Iafrate 
YCDSB Chair       YCDSB Vice-Chair 
Trustee, Aurora/King/Whitchurch-Stouffville   Trustee, Richmond Hill 
 
 
Ref:  2025:01:1119:EC, MI 
 
 

103



York Catholic District School Board 

REPORT 

 
Report to:​ Board of Trustees 

Date:​ ​ December 16, 2025 

Report: ​ Proposed By-Law Changes to Operational By-Law No. 1 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Board of Trustees follow their Operational By-Law No. 1 to operationalize all Board and 
Committee meetings. 
 
The following Operational By-Law change is being brought forward for information at the 
December 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting and will come for Action on January 27, 2026. 
 
BACKGROUND 
To better support students, families, and staff, it is proposed that the order of the Regular Board 
Meeting agenda be modified so that recognitions occur earlier in the Public Session. This 
adjustment ensures that those attending to receive recognition are not required to sit through the 
full duration of regular board business on a weeknight. Placing recognitions at the beginning of 
the meeting allows participants to be acknowledged promptly and return to their evening routines 
without unnecessary delay.  A “Recess” will be called immediately after. 
 
It is also proposed that: 

●​ The title of the Chair’s Report be updated to remove the phrase “Update/Inspirational 
Messages” for improved clarity and alignment with the report’s intended purpose. 

●​ The following be added immediately after the Chair’s Report: Highlights from SEAC or 
Student Success & Pathways Committee 

 
OPERATIONAL BY-LAW NO. 1 
Parameter 3.1.10 Agenda for Board Meetings outlines the agenda for Public Session Board 
Meetings as follows: 
 
3.1.10​ Agenda for Board Meetings 

Minutes of the Public and Private Session, Board and Committee meetings will note 
when Trustees leave and return to the meeting. 

 
Public Session 
1.​ Opening Prayer 
2.​ Land Acknowledgement 
3.​ Roll Call​  
4.​ Approval of New Material 
5.​ Approval of the Agenda 
6.​ Declarations of Conflict of Interest for Current Meeting 

104



7.​ Declarations of Conflict of Interest from Previous Meeting 
8.​ Approval of the Previous Minutes 
9.​ Business Arising from Minutes of Previous Meeting 
14.10.​ Recognitions / Outside Presentations 
​ RECESS  
10.11.​ Chair’s Report / Update/ Inspirational Messages 
12.​ Highlights from SEAC OR Student Success & Pathways Committee 
11.13.​ OCSTA Board of Director’s Update 
12.14.​ Director’s Report / Update 
13.15.​ Student Trustees’ Report 
14.​ Recognitions / Outside Presentations 
15.16.​ Delegations 
16.17.​ Journey Towards our Vision - Staff Presentations 
17.18.​ Action Items including Committee Reports 
18.19.​ Discussion Items 
19.20.​ Information Items 
20.21.​ Notices of Motion 
21.22.​ Future Agenda Items / Requests for Information 
22.23.​ Prayer to St. Michael the Archangel 
23.24.​ Adjournment 
 
 
SUMMARY 
Proposed Change is to: 
 
Move:​ ​ #14 Recognitions / Outside Presentations to #10.  
 
Add:​ ​  “RECESS” immediately after Recognitions / Outside Presentations 
 
Remove:​  “/Update/Inspirational Messages” from. #11 to simply read, Chair’s Report 
 
Add:​ ​  “Highlights from SEAC or Student Success & Pathways Committee” to #12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Maria Iafrate, Chair of the Board 
 
 

105



York Catholic District School Board 
Catholic Education Centre, 320 Bloomington Road West, Aurora, Ontario L4G 0M1 

Tel: 905-713-1211, 416-221-5051, 1-800-363-2711 
Fax: 905-713-1272 ● www.ycdsb.ca 

 

Maria Iafrate, Trustee – Richmond Hill 
maria.iafrate@ycdsb.ca • Cell: 416-726-2241 

December 9, 2025 
 

SUPPORT FOR THE HOLY LAND  
CHILDREN’S EDUCATIONAL ENDOWMENT FUND 

 
 
  
Whereas the Equestrian Order of the Holy Sepulchre of Jerusalem has established the 

Holy Land Children’s Educational Endowment Fund – Ensuring the Future to 
provide urgently needed support to safeguard and sustain schools in the Holy 
Land, ensuring that children can learn in safe and stable classrooms;  

 
Whereas the Lieutenancies of North America, in partnership with the Lieutenancy of 

Toronto, have launched the Ensuring the Future Capital Campaign to raise both 
immediate and long-term funds necessary to maintain accessible Christian 
education in the Holy Land; 

 
Whereas the Order seeks “to finance our schools, our Christian schools and universities in 

the Holy Land… to form a new generation that is formed with our principles,” as 
stated by Leonardo Visconti di Modrone, Governor General of the Order. 

 
 
 
LET IT BE RESOLVED 
 
THAT the York Catholic District School Board hold a one-day fundraiser, “Civies Day”, in January 
2026, inviting each student and all staff member to contribute $2.00 (Toonie) with all proceeds 
directed to the Holy Land Children’s Educational Endowment Fund, 
 
THAT an honorary cheque, representing the collective contribution of the YCDSB community, be 
formally presented to H.E. Dr. Colin Saldanha, Lieutenant, or his designate, on behalf of the 
Equestrian Order of the Holy Sepulchre of Jerusalem. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
Maria Iafrate 
Chair of the Board 
Trustee, Richmond Hill 
 
 
Ref:  2026:01:1209:MI 

106



●

●

107



108



109



110



111



112



●

●

113



114



115



116



117



●

●

118



119



120



  
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
 
REPORT TO:             Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Administration 
 
DATE:   December 16, 2025 
 
RE:   YCDSB Charitable Foundation Update  

   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
This report is to provide an update on the York Catholic District Hope and Opportunity 
Foundation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Director has been working in concert with legal counsel to establish a charitable foundation. 
To date, the following processes have been completed: 

1) Application for Incorporation filed in May 2025. 
2) Confirmation that “The York Catholic District Hope and Opportunity Foundation” was 

incorporated effective July 11, 2025. 
3) Application filed and acknowledgment received on October 16 that the CRA would be 

processing the request for charitable status.  
 
The outstanding item is the CRA approving the charitable status and providing a registered 
number. The time frame for the completion of this in approximately six months. Therefore, we 
should have some information back mid-April 2026 at the earliest. 
 
Once that confirmation is received, the first meeting of the York Catholic District Hope and 
Opportunity Foundation will be held and work will begin to meet the Foundation’s approved 
general activities. Accordingly, to the incorporation document, they are: 
 

a) to relieve poverty by providing food and other basic necessities of life and access to 
supplementary educational programs to students at York Catholic District School Board 
whose families are experiencing poverty, of low income, or in need; and; 

b) to receive and maintain a fund or funds and to apply all or part of the principal and income 
therefrom, from time to time, to the York Catholic District School Board provided that it 
is a charitable organization that is also a registered. 
 

SUMMARY: 
Further information will be provided once all approvals are received. 
 
 
Prepared and Submitted by: John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board 
 

121



York Catholic District School Board 

 

 
 

REPORT 
 

Report To:  Board of Trustees 

From:          Administration 

Date:            December 16, 2025 

Report:   Canadian Cognitive Abilities Test (CCAT) Update 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

This report has been prepared in response to a request for additional information regarding the standardized 
cognitive-abilities assessment tool used to determine eligibility for gifted program placement in Ontario. The 
request arose following the release of the YCDSB 2024 Student Census results, which were undertaken to 
develop a deeper understanding of the students and communities we serve and to identify any potential gaps 
or barriers to student success within our Board, as required under Ontario’s Anti-Racism Act, 2017, 
the Education Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. E.2, and the Human Rights Code, R.S.O. 1990, c. H.19. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:              

           

The YCDSB uses the Canadian Cognitive Abilities Test (CCAT) along with the WISC to determine eligibility 
for placement in our Program for Academic and Creative Extension (PACE).  The chart below is reflective of 
the current assessment tools used in following School Boards:       
 
School Board Criteria  School Board  Criteria  

York Region DSB CCAT 
WISC  
Naglieri General 
Abilities Test (NGAT) 

Bruce Grey Catholic  WISC-V 

Peel DSB Naglieri General 
Abilities Test (NGAT) 

Trillium Lakelands WISC-V 

Dufferin Peel DSB CCAT  
WISC 

Halton District School 

Board  
CCAT in Grade 4 
WISC-V 
Naglieri General 
Abilities Test (NGAT) 
  

122



 

Durham DSB CCAT    
WISC-V    

Bluewater District School 

Board  
Grade 4 
Insight Cognitive 
Abilities Assessment 

Toronto Catholic DSB OLSAT8 Otis 
Lennon School 
Ability Test 

Simcoe County District 

School Board 
OLSAT (Otis-Lennon 
School Ability Test) 
WISC 

Toronto DSB CCAT-7  
WISC-V or Stanford-
Binet FSIQ  

Hamilton-Wentworth 

Catholic District School 

Board  

CCAT 

Ottawa Catholic DSB CCAT-7 
WISC-V or Stanford-
Binet FSIQ  

Niagara Catholic District 

School Board 
CCAT  

Peterborough Victoria North 

Thumberland and Clarington 

CDSB 

OLSAT (Otis Lennon 
School Ability Test)  
WISC  

Ottawa-Carleton District 

School Board 
Primary Grades 1-4: 
CCAT OR 
WPPSI-IV, WISC-V 
or Stanford-Binet  
  
Junior Grades 5-8: 
CCAT-7 OR  
WISC-V or Stanford-
Binet FSIQ  
Naglieri General 
Abilities Test (NGAT) 

  

SUMMARY:   

 

The Peel District School Board, Halton District School Board, and Ottawa-Carleton District School Board 
have begun piloting the Naglieri General Abilities Test (NGAT) as part of their efforts to enhance equity in 
the identification of gifted students. The York Region District School Board is also exploring the NGAT, a 
verbal, nonverbal, and quantitative assessment that measures reasoning and problem-solving skills with 
minimal reliance on prior knowledge. Because the NGAT can be completed regardless of a student’s language 
background, it is considered a more culturally responsive and inclusive tool.  
 
Developed by Dr. Jack A. Naglieri, Dr. Dina M. Brulles, and Dr. Kimberly Lansdowne, the NGAT was 
specifically designed to provide a fair and effective measure of general ability, ensuring that gifted learners 
from all backgrounds have equitable access to appropriate educational opportunities. 
 
The York Catholic District School Board will also exploring the NGAT, a verbal, nonverbal, and quantitative 
assessment that measures reasoning and problem-solving skills with minimal reliance on prior knowledge. 
 

 
Submitted by: Jennifer Powers, Superintendent of Exceptional Learners   

Reviewed by:  Jennifer Sarna, Associate Director 
Endorsed by:          John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair & Secretary of the Board 

123



York Catholic District School Board 
 

 
 
Report to:  Board of Trustees  
From:  Administration  
Date:  December 16, 2025 
Report:  Multi-Year Financial Recovery Plan (MYFRP) update 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

To ensure transparency and good governance over the Multi-Year Financial Recovery Plan (MYFRP), 
administration will provide monthly updates to the Board.  This report presents the 2025/26 projection 
which is based on the recently completed Revised Estimates. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

On July 23, 2025, at the Ministry’s request, the Board of Trustees submitted a revised MYFRP. This 
version excluded committed capital projects while still achieving elimination of the accumulated deficit 
by 2030/31. The revised submission incorporated updated 2024/25 projections and was reported to the 
Board on August 26. As of today, the Ministry has not yet approved the revised plan. 

MYFRP UPDATE – 2025/26 
The 2025/26 Revised Estimates has been developed and will represent the latest projection to the 
Ministry.   While there has been some volatility in the budget the 2025/26 Revised Estimates deficit 
remains on track with the original Estimates deficit at $9.4M. 

MYFRP UPDATE – 2026/27 AND BEYOND 
 
We remain on track with the MYFRP submitted for approval.   
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Calum McNeil, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer of the Board 
Endorsed by:  John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board 

REPORT 
 

124



York Catholic District School Board 
 
 

 

REPORT 
 

Report To:  Board of Trustees 

From:          Administration 

Date:            December 16, 2025 

Report:   Yonge North Subway Extension Update 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

This report is intended to provide the Board with updates on the Yonge North Subway Extension, 
including a response to the Board’s letters from May 7, 2025 to the Ministers of Education and 
Transportation, an update on Metrolinx’s planned expropriation of land beneath St. Anthony and 
an overall update on the construction/tunneling phase of the project. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:                                                                                                                             

Past reports to the Board have provided Trustees with information on the planned subway 
alignment beneath St. Anthony CES, efforts to have Metrolinx reconsider the subway alignment 
as well as discussions regarding land value to facilitate a transfer through an amicable sale, or in 
the event Metrolinx proceeds with an expropriation. 
 
Under the Building Transit Faster Act, Metrolinx has the legislative authority to expropriate lands 
it requires for infrastructure projects such as the Yonge North Subway Extension, despite any 
objections from landowners. 
 
At the April 2025 Board meeting, Administration advised the Board that Metrolinx had served the 
Board with a Notice of Application to Expropriate the strata lands beneath St. Anthony it 
requires.   Following the meeting, the Board sent letters to the Ministers of Education and 
Transportation regarding its objection to the alignment of the YNSE tunnel beneath St. Anthony 
(Appendix 1 and 2). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

125



 

 
UPDATE: 

Response to the May 7th letters 

On December 4, 2025 the Ministry of Transportation sent a response to the May 7 letter, attached 
as Appendix 3.  Among other things, the letter states: 

“The ministry has thoroughly reviewed the concerns raised in your letter and 
concluded that the proposed expropriation of the property interests at 141 Kirk Drive 
is necessary to support the delivery of the Yonge North Subway Extension (YNSE) 
project. I am satisfied that Metrolinx is taking appropriate steps to address the 
concerns raised” 

Regarding the route beneath St. Anthony specifically, the letter states: 

“While Metrolinx acknowledges your opposition to the (tunnel) routing, the alignment 
for the YNSE is finalized and its design ensures the optimal placement of stations in the 
heart of York Region.  Metrolinx is no longer considering alternate routing options.” 

 

Expropriation Process 

At the April Board meeting, Administration informed the Board that the next steps Metrolinx 
would be taking regarding the expropriation are as follows: 

1. Certificate of Approval executed by Minister of Transportation 
2. Register Expropriation Plan 
3. Serve Notices of Expropriation (NOE) 
4. Possession Date 

On November 24 2025, Administration was advised by Metrolinx that Step 1 above (Certificate 
of Approval) was signed by the Minister of Transportation earlier in November.  It is understood 
that Metrolinx is now in the process of preparing and registering the expropriation plan, to be 
followed by the service of the Notice of Expropriation documents.  According to Metrolinx, the 
anticipated timeline for the Board to be served with these documents is within the next few weeks. 
Given past experience with timelines provided by Metrolinx, it is possible that receipt of 
expropriation documents could extend beyond ‘the next few weeks’. 

Administration has informed the Board’s external legal counsel with this latest update, who has 
confirmed there is no action required from the Board at this time. 

In some cases, where parties do not agree on sale price, it is common for an expropriating body 
(Metrolinx in this case) to take possession of property with the determination of sale price to be 
determined by the Ontario Land Tribunal, well after the date of expropriation. 

126



 

It is important to note that while the expropriation process is underway, Metrolinx had previously 
advised that it wishes to negotiate an amicable settlement to avoid an expropriation.  In November 
2024, Administration provided Metrolinx with an appraisal commissioned by the Board.  Though 
it has acknowledged receipt and indicated that it is reviewing the appraisal, Metrolinx has not 
initiated any further steps to discuss a potential settlement.  At this point it is unknown if Metrolinx 
will pursue an amicable settlement or will simply proceed with an expropriation of the lands 
beneath St. Anthony. 

Construction of the Yonge North Subway Extension 

While  preliminary works for the project are underway, a construction schedule for the tunneling 
phase of the project has not yet been provided by Metrolinx.  Metrolinx has announced that a 
tunneling contractor has been selected, however work is not expected to begin until 2027 at the 
earliest.  Given Metrolinx’s adherence to previous milestone dates, it remains to be seen if a 
construction start in 2027 is attainable.  

 
NEXT STEPS: 

On the advice of legal counsel, no action from the Board is required at this time. Administration 
anticipates service of documents related to the expropriation could be as early as a few weeks, or 
sometime into the new year. 

Administration will evaluate potential accommodation scenarios for the possible relocation of 
students from St. Anthony to alternate school(s) due to construction beneath the school. 

Given the potential timeframe for the tunnelling phase of the project, it is premature to advance 
discussions on relocation scenarios as it could be a number of years before alternate 
accommodation measures are necessary.  A proper construction schedule from Metrolinx is 
necessary to conduct a meaningful, fully informed decision-making process to ensure the adequate 
accommodation of all students. 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Administration continues to monitor the developments of the Yonge North Subway Extension 
project in the Royal Orchard Community, and will provide further updates to the Board as new 
information becomes available. 

 
 
 
Submitted by:     Adam McDonald, Manager, Accommodation Planning and Property   
Reviewed by: Giovanna De Girolamo, Coordinating Manager, Planning and Operations 
Endorsed by: John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair & Secretary of the Board 
  

127



 

May 7, 2025 
 
Email to:  minister.edu@ontario.ca  

TransitLandAssembly@ontario.ca   
 

The Honourable Paul Calandra 
Minister of Education 
 
Ministry of Education 
5th Flr, 438 University Ave  
Toronto, Ontario M7A 2A5 
 
 
Re:  Notice of Application for Approval to Expropriate Land 

Municipal Address: 141 Kirk Drive, City of Markham,  
St. Anthony Catholic Elementary School 
Metrolinx Property Req. No.: 03026-0042 

 

Dear Minister Calandra: 
 
As you are likely aware, the alignment that the Provincial Government has approved as the route for 
the Yonge North Subway Extension results in two subway tunnels directly beneath St. Anthony 
Catholic Elementary School (CES) in Thornhill.  St. Anthony CES will be the first elementary school 
in the province to have a subway directly beneath it. Since the revised alignment was revealed in 
2021, we have expressed strong opposition to it, and Metrolinx’s intent to expropriate the lands at 
141 Kirk Drive that it requires. 
 
Despite our ongoing objections, our board has recently received a Notice of Application for Approval 
for the above noted lands required by Metrolinx for the Yonge North Subway Extension. We are 
again appealing to the Ministry of Education to work with the Ministry of Transportation to change 
the path of the alignment.  The safety of our students remains our top priority. Tunneling activities, 
including drilling and heavy machinery operation, pose significant risks such as structural instability, 
ground settlement, noise and vibration, which could compromise the school’s foundation and create 
an unsafe learning environment. 
 
Metrolinx has made reference to the tunnel under York University, however, respectfully, there are 
a number of key differences with the Schulich School of Business building, namely: 

● The York University building is 18-20 years old, whereas St. Anthony CES was built over 50 
years ago; 

● The York University building houses adults whereas St. Anthony CES is a k-8 school, home 
to student ages 3-14 years old; 

 

128

mailto:minister.edu@ontario.ca
mailto:TransitLandAssembly@ontario.ca


 

Honourable Paul Calandra 
May 7, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 

● The tunnel beneath York University is straight and at a level grade, whereas the proposed 
tunnel below St. Anthony will change grades and is curved; 

● The station box is within close proximity to the York University building. Therefore, the trains 
are likely travelling at lower speeds than they would below St. Anthony CES. 

 
The YCDSB is requesting that Metrolinx reconsider the planned alignment and recognize that St. 
Anthony CES is a sensitive land use, and not a block of open space which can be used to minimize 
the impact to private homes. This decision affects approximately 200 students, their families and 
dedicated staff.  Unlike a store, park or place of worship, students do not have the choice to attend 
an alternate location if they are concerned with the presence of a subway running beneath their 
school. 
 
If the alignment cannot be amended, we respectfully request that the tunnel alignment on the school 
site be moved slightly (approximately 50m-100m) to be located under the playing fields as opposed 
to under the building 
 
As Minister of Education, we know you are committed to protecting local schools and ensuring 
learning environments remain safe for students. We respectfully ask for your support as we continue 
to object to the proposed alignment and expropriation. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this urgent matter and we look forward to your response. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
 
Elizabeth Crowe     John De Faveri 
Chair of the Board Director of Education, Foundation Chair and 

Secretary of the Board 
 

  

129



 
May 7, 2025 
 
Email to:  Prabmeet.Sarkaria@ontario.ca  

TransitLandAssembly@ontario.ca   
 
 

The Honourable Prabmeet Sarkaria  
Minister of Transportation 
 
Ministry of Transportation 
5th Floor, 777 Bay St. 
Toronto, ON M7A 1Z8 
 
 
Re:  Notice of Application for Approval to Expropriate Land 

Municipal Address: 141 Kirk Drive, City of Markham,  
St. Anthony Catholic Elementary School 
Metrolinx Property Req. No.: 03026-0042 

 

Dear Minister Sarkaria: 
 
The York Catholic District School Board is in receipt of a Notice of Application for Approval for the above noted 
lands required by Metrolinx for the Yonge North Subway Extension.  
 
YCDSB is strongly opposed to the alignment of the Yonge North Subway Extension, and Metrolinx’s intent to 
expropriate lands at 141 Kirk Drive that it requires. 
 
YCDSB is on record in its opposition to the alignment of the Yonge North Subway Extension through the Royal 
Orchard community and directly beneath an existing elementary school within the community.  The Board has 
previously written to the Minister of Education as well as to the Metrolinx Board of Directors notifying all parties 
of concerns with a major transit corridor running directly beneath St. Anthony CES (attached). Today we have 
also written to the Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Education, requesting that your ministries work 
together in adjusting the path of the alignment. 
 
As a school board, YCDSB has a site acquisition policy which requires prudent avoidance from highway 
approaches, transmission corridors, flight paths, etc.  The  YCDSB would not knowingly propose or construct 
a school above a subway tunnel given the potential or even perceived risks to our students’ safety and well 
being. 
 
YCDSB wishes to avoid the long term impact of a tunnel beneath the school, the impact on the structure, 
health and well being of students and the regular disruptions to the learning environment, and therefore objects 
to the expropriation. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
        
 
 
Elizabeth Crowe     John De Faveri 
Chair of the Board Director of Education, Foundation Chair and 

Secretary of the Board   
Enclosures 

  

130

mailto:Prabmeet.Sarkaria@ontario.ca
mailto:TransitLandAssembly@ontario.ca
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1aib3BdgqAkeq-SIUfqGkEN-E3VciWk0T/view?usp=drive_link


�����������	��
� �
������������������������
������ !"���#����$��%��������
"�&!"'����(�"��$'��)&!!�����*��+�$,��$�-�

&�� ����(���./!!/��.)!(�(������	�0�,1234��5���46-���1 �6���$)&1���6 �$(�&��1�&$����3����	7��4�*��772�74�82
(�/�3����	7��4�*��772�74�69 ��*131



�

�����������	��
� �
������������������������
������ !"���#����$��%��������
"�&!"'����(�"��$'��)&!!�����*��+�$,��$�-�

&�� ����(���./!!/��.)!(�(������	�0�,1234��5���46-���1 �6���$)&1���6 �$(�&��1�&$����3����	7��4�*��772�74�82
(�/�3����	7��4�*��772�74�69 4�*132



�����������	��
��
���������������������������������������������������������� ������������������!�������"�#$�%�&����%�'()*+,-*,)--���./012341/561789:/5;836/<=>?@A�BC?DE�?@�FGCE@AGHE@?@A�I@G=C?JK�?GF�BL=MEF�=@D�?GF�BEJBLE���NOPQR�SQOTUQ�VWXYWZ[\��������������������������������������������]ẐZ_̀ab�cd�eaf̂_gcàf̀Zĉ�h�î f̀aZc�jklmZn�oXapZnXqrstuvwtvsww�h�xyz{|}~{y��{����y���}�y������������������������������������������������������������������

,+
�
+���-��+��� ���&����&��������$�*� ¡¢���£"�¤��������¥�������¦&£�*�&����������£$���������&%���$�*�,',�§��̈������

������

���$©ª��ª$�©%��
���$
�
�
«�̈¬) (++­-��(®���¡¬��®����%�¬�$$®�������¢¬�����¢* �,-��̄,+(�'�+̄ )̄,̄(+°)���ª* �,-��̄,+(�'�+̄ )̄,̄(+®± '
'133



  
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
 
REPORT TO:             Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Administration 
 
DATE:   December 16, 2025 
 
RE:   Legal Opinion Process  

   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
From time to time, legal opinions are required or requested to help inform decision making. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Legal opinions are often required when decisions are made, either by the Board in their governance 
capacity, or by the Director in their operational capacity. These legal opinions all flow through the 
Office of the Director and under most circumstances are provided to the Director who is then 
responsible for providing that information to the Board or senior staff. 
 
Those opinions are provided in one of two ways depending on the depth of analysis required. In 
some cases, the opinion may be in the form of a response in an email, while others may be in the 
form of an actual document provided on the firm’s letterhead and signed by the appropriate 
counsel(s) providing that opinion. 
 
Regardless of which of those two methods are used by the respective firm, the communication to 
the respective parties by the Director must not be altered or modified in any way. If the opinion is 
in the form of an email, the entire email must be forwarded, including the identification of the firm 
and the author. If it is in the form of a document, the entire document must be provided. The 
document will identify the firm and author. 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Whether it is the Board or supervisory staff that require accurate legal opinions to either make 
decisions or operationalize decisions, it is critical that these opinions be shared as sent from the 
source. 
 
 
 
Prepared and Submitted by: John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board 

134



  
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
 
REPORT TO:             Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Administration 
 
DATE:   December 16, 2025 
 
RE:   Trustees Meeting with Director or Sr. Staff  

   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The Director was asked to prepare an Information Report for the December 16, 2025 Regular 
Board Meeting, outlining the protocol for Trustees when meeting with the Director and/or Senior 
Staff. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A review of the statutory framework which contemplates this question would be beneficial. The 
Education Act and regulations establish the governance model that ensures separation of roles: 
Trustees/Board provide oversight, direction, policy and strategic priorities while the Director 
administers operations, programs, and ensures implementation. The Director also has a dual 
accountability in that they answer to the Board (as their employer), and in cases of possible 
statutory breach by the Board, they must escalate issues to the Ministry. In essence, trustees 
govern, set direction, uphold accountability, allocate resources and represent the community while 
delegating the operational execution to the Director of Education.  

This division, i.e. governance vs administration, is designed so that elected public representatives 
provide oversight, direction and accountability, while professional administrators manage 
operations and deliver services. Board decisions are collective - individual trustees do not have 
authority on their own. Decisions are made by the Board as a corporate body.  These decisions are 
made at either Board or Committee meetings. This is the forum at which trustees receive reports, 
deal with motions, ask questions to increase their personal knowledge of key issues, seek 
clarification and engage in dialogue that benefits all trustees by receiving the same information at 
the same time thus enhancing informed decision making.  

Trustees are not involved in day-to-day operations: they do not manage schools, assign teachers, 
direct staff, supervise daily teaching, etc. as that is the role of the Director and subordinate staff. 
This helps avoid duplication, confusion, or overreach by individual trustees. Because the Director 
is the Board’s sole employee, it is much easier for the Board to hold one employee, i.e. the Director 
accountable. Thus, the governance-administration division is fundamental for accountability, 
transparency, consistency with provincial standards and responsiveness to local community needs.  

 

135

https://www.hdsb.ca/media/oanni553/directorsrolesresponsibilitiesgovproc.pdf?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.rcdsb.on.ca/en/our-district/roles-and-responsibilities-of-the-board-of-trustees.aspx?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.rcdsb.on.ca/en/our-district/roles-and-responsibilities-of-the-board-of-trustees.aspx?utm_source=chatgpt.com
https://www.dcdsb.ca/en/resourcesGeneral/General-Working-By-Law-Trustee-Code-of-Conduct-and-Resource-Documents/Board-Governance-Role-Descriptions.pdf?utm_source=chatgpt.com


 

 

Following this framework should eliminate the need for any individual trustee to request to meet 
individually with any staff. Additional information that is sought outside of the Board and 
committee meeting structure should be directed to the sole employee of the Board, the Director of 
Education, for action. 

Nonetheless, trustees play a key and vital role in representing the interest and voices of parents, 
students and community, especially when acting as advocates to promote and enhance student 
learning at the local school level. In these circumstances, it is strongly encouraged for local trustees 
to have regular dialogue with the respective school superintendent so that together, they can 
support the local school. 

 

SUMMARY: 
Positive relationships and opportunity for discussions between trustees, the Director and Senior 
staff are critical to the success of our students. Board and committee meetings provide the best 
opportunity in an open, transparent setting and reduce any perceived overreach. These 
communication channels should also assist trustees clarify their role to parents/guardians. Should 
the need arise for any meeting between trustees and senior staff, it will be coordinated through the 
Office of the Director of Education. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared and Submitted by: John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board 

 

 
 
 
 

136



  
YORK CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

 
 
REPORT TO:             Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Administration 
 
DATE:   December 16, 2025 
 
RE:   Cost Containment for Legal Processes 

   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
Legal expenses for the Board fluctuate from year to year based on a number of variables that are 
often out of the control of the Board. This report will outline the on-going work that is being done 
to explore methods of cost containment. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Director and the CFO established a working group (MYFRP Steering Committee) in the fall 
of this year composed of representatives of senior staff to analyze and explore the use of legal 
counsel as it exists and to assess potential alternatives that would result in cost saving. These 
meetings have taken place within the context of  supporting the Multi-Year Financial Recovery 
Plan.  
 
Currently, and understandably, the highest uses of legal are related to Human Resources and 
Special Education. Options that have been explored are: 

a) In-house legal counsel: There are some Boards, especially the larger Boards, that have 
made a determination to have in-house legal counsel as a first step to gather rudimentary 
opinions as to how to proceed with legal matters. This has also been previously explored 
at YCDSB.  

b) Working with our legal firms to designate one central intake person to provide preliminary 
opinion (similar to (a) but going external as opposed to in-house). 

c) Using more “junior” counsel to reduce cost.s 
 

There are also a few other options used by other institutions to contain legal expenses. Each option 
comes with risks and has both pros and cons. 
   
SUMMARY: 
The MYFRP Steering Committee will continue to explore and assess the best method for obtaining 
sound legal advice/opinion balancing the risks and benefits of each with the goal of fiscal 
responsibility for legal costs. Further updates will be provided to the Board. 
 
 
Prepared and Submitted by: John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board 
 
 

137



York Catholic District School Board 

 

 
 

REPORT 
 

Report To:  Board of Trustees 

From:          Administration 

Date:            December 16, 2025 

Report:   Implementation of School Bus Cancellation Service Areas 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Executive Summary 
Administration has finalized a plan with Student Transportation Services (STS) and the York Region District 
School Board (YCDSB) to implement Inclement Weather Service Areas without increasing transportation 
costs by allowing existing routes to operate across areas while enabling localized cancellation decisions. 

 

Background 
As reported to Corporate Services Committee on Tuesday, December 9th, 2025, Administration has engaged 
in active discussions with STS and YRDSB to determine whether it is feasible to implement a Georgina 
Service Area and Southern Service Areas in a way that does not result in increased transportation costs. 

A methodology has been identified whereby existing routes are categorized to allow for localized decision 
making for the area north of and including Ravenshoe Road (referred to as the Georgina Service Area) and 
the area south of Ravenshoe Rd (referred to as Southern Service Area). 

If a service area is cancelled, any run serving a school in that area will not operate, and no stops within the 
cancelled area will be serviced, even if the bus normally starts elsewhere. Runs that originate outside the 
cancelled area may still operate, but they will skip all stops located within the cancelled zone. Families will 
need to know the service area for both their home and their school; if those fall into different zones, students 
would lose service whenever either zone is cancelled. 

The new service areas will take effect as a pilot project beginning on January 5, 2026. A communication will 
be sent to all families during the week of December 15th, 2025 so they are aware of the upcoming change. 
We will also target communication efforts specifically with the school communities of Our Lady of the Lake 
CHS, St. Thomas Aquinas CES, Prince of Peace CES, and St. Bernadette CES, given the potential impact on 
those students and their families. 
 
 
 
 

138



 

 
Table 1 identifies the schools that will be in the Georgina service area, and the percentage of current students 
that are transported. 
 
 
 
Table 1- Georgina Schools & % of Student Population Transported 

School Name 
% of Transported Students 

YCDSB 
Elementary 
OUR LADY OF THE LAKE ELEM (GR 7-8) 86% 
PRINCE OF PEACE CES 67% 
ST. BERNADETTE CES 79% 
ST. THOMAS AQUINAS CES 71% 
Secondary 
OUR LADY OF THE LAKE CHS (GR 9-12) 48% 

 
All other YCDSB schools will be part of the Southern Service Area. 
 
Four schools would be directly affected if the Georgina Service Area were cancelled, with approximately 960 
students impacted. There would also be implications for approximately 12 students who reside in Georgina 
but attend French Immersion and PACE programs in the South, as their bus routes would be cancelled 
whenever transportation in the Georgina Service Area is suspended. 
 
Administration is referring to this as a pilot project, and together with STS and YRDSB, we are committed to 
assessing its effectiveness and will remain open to making any necessary modifications. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Administration, STS, and YRDSB have developed a cost-neutral plan to introduce Inclement Weather 
Service Areas, enabling localized bus cancellation decisions for Georgina and the southern region. Families 
will be informed in mid-December, with the new service areas taking effect on January 5, 2026. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Giovanna De Girolamo, Coordinating Manager, Planning & Operations 
Submitted by: Calum McNeil, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Board 
Endorsed by: John De Faveri, Director of Education, Foundation Chair and Secretary of the Board 
  

 

139



 

 

JANUARY 2026  
TRUSTEE SERVICES 

Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fr i  Sat  

    
 

 1 
 
NEW YEAR’S DAY 
 

2 
 

3 
 

4 
 

5 
 

6 
Epiphany of  

Our Lord 
 
 

7 
 

Director’s Council 
 
 

8 9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 
 
6:30pm  SEAC 

13 
 

14 

 

15 

 
  

16  P.A. Day  (E) 

 
OCSTA Trustee  
Seminar 
9 am to 4pm 

17 
 
OCSTA Trustee  
Seminar 
9 am to 12pm 

18 
 
 

 

19 
 
 
6:30 pm  YCPIC 

20 
 
Executive 3pm  (Public) 
Executive 4pm (Private) 
 
 

21 22 23 
 
 

 

24 

25 26 
 

27 
 
6:30 pm CTW 
7:30 pm Regular Board 

28 29 30 
PA Day (E/S) 

31 

Monthly Virtue:   Unity 
 

 
February 2026 
Feb 3—Policy Review 6:30 pm 
Feb 4—Director’s Council 
Feb 9—SEAC 6:30pm 
Feb 10—Corporate Services 6:30 pm (Public) 
Feb 10—Corporate Services 7:30 pm (Private) 
Feb 11—Human Resources Committee 3pm 
Feb 16—Family Day—HOLIDAY 
Feb 17—Executive 3pm (Public) 
Feb 17—Executive 4:00 pm (Private) 
Feb 18—Ash Wednesday 
Feb 23—Student Success & Pathways 6:30 pm 
Feb 24 —Committee of the Whole 6:30 pm 
Feb 24—Regular Board 7:30 pm 
 
March 2026 
Mar 2—SEAC 6:30 pm 
Mar 3—Director’s Council 
Mar 11—Joint Board 4pm 
Mar 11—Audit Committee 5:30 pm (Public) 
Mar 11—Audit Committee 6:30 pm (Private) 
Mar 12—Board-Wide Lenten Mass 1:15 pm 
Mar 16-20—March Break 
Mar 23—YCPIC 6:30 pm 
Mar 30—Apr 3: Holy Week: No Night  
                           Meetings 
 
 
 

 

140


	Agenda
	10. 10 Chair's Report - December 16, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	11. 11 OCSTA Report to Board - December 16, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	12. 12 Director's Report - December 16, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	13. 13 December 16th, 2025 - Student Trustee Report.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	16.a. 16a Director's Annual Report 2024-25.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	16.b. 16b FIRST Year 3 MYSP Report Dec. 2025.docx (5).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.a. 17a Legal Costs re Investigation - September 30, 2025a.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.b. 17b Policy 106 and Procedure for 106.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.b. 17b1 DRAFT Procedure 106 Delegations to the Board (1).docx.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.c. 17c Executive Terms of Reference 2026 as of December 16, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.d. 17d PRC Report to Board 2026_01 - Dec 16, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.e. 17e Corporate Services Report 2026-01 Public Decenber 9, 2025.docx.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.e. 17e1 Corporate Services Committee 2026 CSC Terms of Reference.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.f. 17f CTW Report 2026-021 December 16, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	17.g. 17g SEAC December Board Report 2026-02.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	18.a. 18a Legal Invoices - October 28, 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	18.b. 18b Revised Exploration of Mobile STREAM Centres.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	18.c. 18c September 26, 2023 - Public Funds and TRIP.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	18.d. 18d Audit of YCDSB PCards - November 19, 2024.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.a. 19a Changes to Board Agenda - Operational ByLaws.docx.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.b. 19b December 9, 2025 - Support for Holy Land Children's Ed Endowment Fund.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.c. 19c.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.d. 19d YCDSB Charitable Foundation Status.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.e. Canadian Cognitive Abilities Test (CCAT) Update .pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.f. 19f MYFRP update- Board Dec 16 2025 (1).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.g. 19g Yonge North Subway Extension Update.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.g. Appendix 1 - Ministry of Ed - Notice of Application to Expropriate_Letter 2_May 7 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.g. Appendix 2 - Ministry MTO - Notice of Application to Expropriate_Letter 1_May 7 2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.g. Appendix 3 - MTO Response to May 7 2025 Letter_Dec4_2025.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.h. 19h Legal op process.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.i. 19i Trustee_SR Admin mtg.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.j. 19j Legal cost minimization.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.k. Implementation of School Bus Cancellation Service Areas.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	19.l. 19k January 2026.pdf
	Back to Agenda


